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Governance with Social Impact -
the future of corporate progress

Young
people take
action on
environmental
issues as a
matter of

course — the
same way we
breathe. But
we need all
generations
on board.

Akira Sakano

World Economic Forum
Global Shaker, Chair of
the Board of Directors,
Zero Waste Academy,
Japan & part of the
Global Shapers
Community

“CONTRIBUTE
TO SOCIETY,
OR RISK
LOSING OUR
SUPPORT.”

BlackRock

Global Investment
Management
Company

“IT'S NOT AN
INVESTMENT
IFIT'S

DESTROYING
THE PLANET."

Dr Vandana Shiva
Scholar, Environmentall
Activist (Source: 350.org)

£k The value at
stake from
sustainability
concerns can
be as a high as
70% of earnings
before interest,
taxes,
depreciation,
and
amortization.§¥

McKinsey
Global Management
Consulting Firm

“ Wealthy

millennials are almost
twice as likely as their
grandparents to
regard their
investments as a way
to express social,
political, or

environmental values,

and nearly
three-quarters of
millennials believe
that it is possible to
realize market-rate
returns investing in
companies based on
their social or
environmental
impact. These
opinions matter.
Millennials are poised
to share in the largest
intergenerational
wealth tfransfer in
human history.

(Source: U.S. Trust Insights on
Wealth and Worth, Bank of
America Private Wealth
Management)

“ The Apologetic
Erais about
restoring. Restoring
confidence.
Restoring trust.
Restoring health.
Restoring faith.
Restoring hope,
mission, quality, and
accountability. It's
about restoring
transparency and
compassion. §§
Dale Partridge, Author
(Source: People Over Profit:

Break the System, Live with
Purpose, Be More Successful)

THE
GREATEST
THREAT TO
OUR PLANET

IS THAT
SOMEONE
ELSE WILL
SAVEIT.

Robert Swan
Historian, Explorer,
Activist

"WHAT GETS
MEASURED
GETS DONE.”

Michaoel LeBoeuf

Business Author, Former
Management Professor
University of New Orleans
(Source: The Greatest
Management Principles in
the World)

L& wnat
people have
the capacity to
choose, they
have the ability
to change. Y

Madeleine Albright
Politician, Diplomat, First
Female United States
Secretary of State
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Praicinan ingsingte of Comenits Govemancs

“ALWAYS DO
RIGHT. THIS WILL
GRATIFY SOME
PEOPLE AND
ASTONISH THE
REST.”

Mark Twain
Writer, Humorist, Enfrepreneur,
Publisher, Lecturer

“COMPANIES

WITH THEIR EYE
ON THEIR
TRIPLE-BOTTOM-
LINE

OUTPERFORM

THEIR LESS
FASTIDIOUS

PEERS ON THE
STOCK MARKET)

(Source: The Economist)
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Pakizstan Insfitute of Corporate Governance

PICG envisions becoming the leading
provider of knowledge on corporate
governance best practices for all key

stakeholders involved in or affected
by corporate governance, with the
objective of bringing about national
economic and social fransformations
by improving the quality of corporate
governance in Pakistan.
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INTERVIEW WITH
DR. SHAMSHAD
AKHTAR




GOVERNANCE WITH A BIG G!
DR. SHAMSHAD AKHTAR ON JOINING
THE PICG BOARD

Our esteemed Board Member, former Governor of the Central
Bank of Pakistan, the first woman to assume this position, and
Interim Finance, Economy and Planning Minister. In her capacity
as Govemor, Dr. Akhtar was also the Chairperson of the Central
Bank Board and its affiliates, as well as a Govemor of the IMF,

Dr. Akhtar has a leng and distinguished career with multilaterals
rising within the ranks of ADB to Director General, in the World
Bank to serve as Vice President Middle East and North Africa,
and at the UN as Undersecretary General.

She won two consecutive awards as Asia's Best Central Bank
Governor from Emerging Markets and from the Banker’s Trust. In
b 2008, The Wall Street Journal Asia recognized her as one of

.}'l_f a A Asia’s top ten professional women.

Q. What mofivated you to join the PICG Board? How do you think you might
be able to lend impetus to its mission ?

SA: Generally, | have for years advocated good governance both af the econemy and corporate
level. Good govemance enhances growth and its quality as well as promotes inclusiveness,
efficiency and equity. At the same time good corporate govemance enhances shareholders' and
other stakeholders’ value. PICG, a nonprofit organization, Is geared to support Pakistani
companies in building their capacities to enhance corporate gevemance. This mission resonates
with me os it is crucial for our country to have large and small corporates lift the productive
capacities and generate the needed job creation.

| propose to work collectively with other Board members and the team of PICG to enhance the
scale and quality of PICG services. PICG needs to lift its game not only to reach out to all comers of
Pakistan, but to ensure it offers best practice guidance to corporates in all critical areas ranging
from promaoting faimess and fransparency to effective management of finance and high quality
audit etc.

Joining the PICG Board has provided me with an excellent opportunity fo support an Institute
working towards a cause that | am passionate about — good govemance. It offers me the chance
o provide my financial, nonprofit sector, and sustainable development expertise fo an
organization that really wants to make a difference through the entire govemance ecosystem in
Pakistan. Serving on a noft for profit board can be a uniquely rewarding experience.

Q. What, in your view, are the best business benefits of good governance
praclices? How can PICG act as an enabler for these practices?

SA: Pakistan's corporates have great potential but strengthening governance generates value
creation, innovation and improved risk management with large stakeholder benefits going beyond
shareholders to customers and employees and those involved in a company’s value chain. As a
partner in development PICG has to further nurture newer value proposition.
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PICG's capacity should be enhanced not only for fraining, but as a research and development
institute which serves to ancalyze the corporate govemance practices in the country and ensure its
findings are incorporated in the programs offered by PICG. The Insfitute should serve s the focal
point on policy consulfations between the private sector, govemment, and regulators.

PICG has to promote certain policy areas and directions that contribute to company and societal
benefits. Among others it should advocate: enhanced focus on the environmental, social,
govemance (ESG) sphere, entrepreneurship through SME training, particulany for women led SMEs,
and play an active role in inclusion fo close the gender gap, partficularly towards the financial and
digital inclusion of women and girs. The implementation of fraining and awareness programs 1s
essenfial to shaping gender equality perspectives in the workplace.

Under the umbrella of PICG, sironger endeavors need to be launched to promote women on
boards and gender diversity by creating regional and global 'partnerships’ - which also happen to
be a focus area of the SDGs through SDG 17.  As chair of the board of Karandaaz Pakistan, | am
proud that this institution has been a role model in promoting gender within the institution as well as
promoting women enfrepreneurship. This year Karandaaz launched a new financing program
called "Women Ventures' to improve access fo finance for women-led businesses. | think we can
use PICG plafform to raise awareness of these cross-cutting themes so other corporates enhance
their gender inclusion.

On ESG, we must create dlignment between the govemment, regulators, and academia to atiract
the growing volume of global capital that is hugely atiracted to ESG practicing companies.
Parficularly, PICG's efforts to co-create and promote an ESG Index will move the needle on public
companies’ potential te bid for global asset allocations.

A partnership with regulators is crifical fo support enhancement in their regulatory frameworks for
financial institutions to lift ESG and UN SDGs and climate risk reslience ambitions to leverage better
development outcomes.

Q. What does success for PICG look like to you?

SA: PICG ought to groom itself as a role model knowledge based institution which draws on iis
leaming from globdl practices and ifs clients and deploys the emerging leaming and thinking to
inform corperates. Knowledge, information, education and effective communication can play a
vital role in capacity building. We need to franslate this knowledge into concrete action for
corporates that takes environmental, social, govemance (ESG), and gender considerations into
account,

Our Vision af PICG should be to uplift PICG as a Center of Excellence (CoE) in corporate
govemance. To become a Center of Excellence the Institute should have a set of clearly defined
guiding principles to establish and successfully evolve as a CoE. PICG should promote
harmonization and standardization. CoE must leam to leverage ifs knowledge and human
capital assets, leam to measure performance, and to develop subject matter experts. Our faculty
should be master frainers in their respective fields.

Most importantly, PICG's thought leadership on corporate govemance and ESG, sirategy and risk,

diversity on boards and fhe Institute's capability for creating partnerships for ‘Govemance with
Social Impact' agenda can create significant shifts in the way business thinks and acts.
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Q. The past few years have seen the world go through a period of inexorable
change, where issues such as ESG have dominailed. What are some of the
greatest focus points that have emerged?

SA: Covid-19 pandemic shook the financial markets inifially but regained strength. Post pandemic
recovery, as being glebally advocated, has to be a green and sustainable recovery. Massive
investment funds have floated ESG and green bonds that will be deployed for future sustainable
and green development. European sustainable funds contfinued to record strong inflows in excess
of €20 billion while traditional equity markets experienced outfiows.

What is causing this change? Firstly, wordwide investors and corporates are becoming increasingly
aware of the benefits of ESG. Companies are recognizing the ESG value propaosition.

Investors also have reason to believe that companies that demonstrate their awareness and
adhere to ESG principles care more likely to have higher standards of corporate govemance, which
translates to improved resilience in adverse economic conditions, Institutional investors and stock
markets are recognizing the value of ESG compliant companies and more and more the investors
will cherry pick shares of such companies.

Alongside growing demand from investors, sustainability issues are being prioritized at the highest
level. The United Nations’ Sustainable Development Godls are described as a ‘blueprint to achieve
a better and more sustainable future for all'.

The largest asset manager in the world, BlackRock, this year called for CECs to disclose more
clearly how they are managing sustainability and warned that companies who do not respond to
sustainability risk will be on the losing side of a significant reallocation of capital. Several Cifi
initiatives are underway to promote urban sustainable development efc.

This has led to all global investment funds taking an ESG approcach, especially sustainable
financing which adheres to ESG standards. We have fo join this momentum at even the most basic
levels of implementation, or we will be left behind.

Q. What do you think are good measures of socio-economic success
factors in Pakistan?

SA: The Asia-Pacific region’s high economic and export led growth supported by human capital
build up and technology is a model for development. United Nations Economic and Social
Commission for Asia and the Pacific’s (ESCAP) flagship repert, Economic and Social Survey of Asia
and the Pacific 2017 advocated effective govemance and an adjoining piece of equity as crifical
for the qudlity of economic growth.

Pakistan has to focus on promoting the fraditional ‘success factors' such as education, high
investment and savings rates. Macroeconomic stability. effective institutions and high class
govemance, in both public and private spheres plus a policy focus to address rising social
inequailities both of income and services and environmental degradation.

For Pakistan, development encompasses improved access to hedlth care, education, water and
energy and overall reduction in the number of people living in extreme poverty. The South Asian
region is facing significant demographic shifts, ruralurban fransitions, technological advances,
inequality and most of dll climate change.

-
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We have recently withessed how intense monsoon rains disrupted lives and infrastructure in Karachi
which is Pakistan's economic hub. Across the region, sustainability is of paramount significance with
focus on resource efficiency and use, harmony with nature and biodiversity to push for
environmental sustainability - all of these elements are ceniral to the sustainable development
agenda. Increasing energy and water efficiency Is also critical for balanced and sustainable
growth and development.

Q. You are an advocate for diversity in boardrooms. What value do you think
gender diversity brings to an organization?

SA: My advocacy is based on facts. Women's parficipation has potential to raise economic growth
with substantial development dividends. Studies have shown that women seek ways to challenge
dominant opinions, and can contribute creatively to board discussions. Further, there is research to
prove that in financial institutions with more women there is less fraud. Women are also more likely fo
raise controversial issues and represent the concems of a variely of stakeholders. This leads to
women fising up for issues like inclusivity and social responsibility.

Their addifion to boards just makes more sense. We welcome the regulator's steps fo encourage, as
o minimum, one worman on corporate boards. To its credit, Asia has promoted much higher
proportion of women on their corporate boards.

Women's induction on boards has the potentfial to catalyze substantial change: greater care for
ethics, greater concem for risk management, and greater altention to sustainability. This will
franslate into the broader change we all want to see in our society that emanates from equdiity for
all, respect for women's rights which will culminate in women's economic empowermment and their
social progress.

Q. What is the change you would like to see in Pakistan’s corporate world in
the nexd 10 years and is it really possible?

SA: | am a firm believer in institutional capacity building. Capacity building is much more than the
transfer of knowledge and skills to individuals. Effective capacity building also improves the
performance of the organization itself. Technical assistance is unlikely to fransiate into stronger
performance unless individuals and organizations have the skills and knowledge to execute their
mandates.

Ultimately, at both the individual and institutional levels, improved knowledge, skills, resources and
working conditions lead o improvements in the performance of key initiatives across a broad
range of sectors and issues.

In Pakistan, a sound corporate govemance regulatory framework has helped to establish a climate
characterized by competitive companies. This owes ifself to the Boards and senior management of
these companies who have understood and adopted the value acddition of corporate
govemance fo their productivity and competitiveness.

| would like to see this frend confinuing and enhancing beyond publicly listed companies and info
family business, small and medium sized enterprises, and startups.
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Director Research and
Placement Publications

Services /—}
/ qorlnPQF B Quarterly newsletter; The Quorum
WK m Survey on board compensation,
practices and remuneration
m Bespoke research for companies
m Board Oversight during COVID-19

Advisory and

Consultancy

= Advisory update P I CG

= Corporate govemance framework

= Corporate govemance assessments s E RVI C E Board

= Famiy business advisory | Performance

= Terms of reference for board committees O F F E RI N Gs Evaluaﬂ'on

®  Intemal audit charter

= CSRimpact assessment Independent evaluations

= Il O - of boards, board members

and board committees

7

Memberships
Trainings and Workshops

" Corporate Governance Leadership Skills
(Director Training Program)

w Director Orientation Workshops

= Company Secretary Development Program

= And Many More!l
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INTERVIEW WITH
PROFESSOR
OLAF WEBER




PROFESSOR OLAF WEBER
ON ESG PRACTICE - A PORTAL TO
INTERNATIONAL CAPITAL

Research chair sustainable finance and professor
School of Environment, Enterprise and
Development, University of Waterloo. His research
focuses on the impacts of the financial industry on
sustainable development, the role of voluntary
and regulatory mechanisms for the indusiry to
become more susiainable, social banking and
impact investing, and tools to analyse ESG
performance.

Q. As you write in Social Banks and the Future of Sustainable Finance, the
need for social banking has never been greater. How do you think
conventional banks In middle Income couniries like Pakistan can be
convinced to integrate a more socially oriented approach towards
banking - one that is more value driven and impactul?

OW: | think the good news is that global banks have starfed addressing environmental and social
concems in their financing activities. The Equator Principles, for instance, are a voluntary code of
conduct that integrates the assessment of social and environmental aspects into project finance.,
However, there is still a long way to go to minimize social and environmental hamms, as banks still
finance projects that have o negative impact on climate change, other environmental issues, or
vulnerable groups. We have to keep in mind that banks mainly do what is good for their financial
bottom line. We need case studies and analyses demonstrating that socidlly oriented approcaches
contribute fo the financial botiom line. At the end, banks thrive if the GDP increases and the
number of people in poverty is reduced. Therefore, we need to have a closer link between the
financial bottom line and preventing social and environmental harm.

Q. What are the main drivers of ESG gaining prominence in developed
couniries?

OW: If we want to grow the economy o confribute to development, we have to take
environmental, social, and governance issues intc account. One maijor fopic is the climate
change impact. The climate change impact on econemic growth should be as small as
possible. Secondly, gender equality is an important topic. Women should have equal
opportunities and should be integrated into economic processes. Thirdly, we need strong
govermnance fo create trust. Projects that look for investments need to be bankable, That
means that the financial risks of these projects should be well govemed.

Q. Could creating a Governance/ESG Index be a catalylic tool for
aftracting capital into Pakistan? What research and evidence is out
there to make the business case for ESG?

OW: As | mentioned, only bankable projects atiract capital. Currently, ESG indicators are
included in most investment decisions. Hence, an index that shows the ESG performance and
the govemance performance of firms would be an important tool for atfracting investments.

29|
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The vast majority, including a meta study that analyzed more than 2000 other studies, show a
posifive correlation between ESG performance and financial performance. Hence, there is a
wide acceptance in the academic literature that the inclusion of ESG criteria might increase
the guadlity of the financial decision making process.

Q. Pakistan Is a member of the Sustainable Banking Network. What kind of
real policy inltiatives can cenftral banks in emerging markets roll out to
promote sustainable finance?

OW: Ceniral banks can start with issuing guidelines about how the financial industry can
integrate ESG into their business practices. Furthermore, they can use key performcance
indicators fo measure the ESG performance of the financial industry and even comelate these
indicators with financicl risk indicators. Consequently, banks with higher ESG scores might have
access to capital with lower interest rates. However, what regulators also should do is offer
frainings and capacity building fo enable the financial indusiry to implement ESG sirategies
intc their business. Again, it will be a matter of demonsiratfing the financial retum of this
sirategy. Probably, more long-term indicators should be used in this regard.

Q. Green financing instruments, most notably green bonds, are gaining
global prominence as a tool to create targeted pools of capital.
However, the market remains relatively underdeveloped in Africa and
South Asia compared with other emerging markets. What reasons do
you see?

OW: There might be different reasons. In some countries with high green bond growth rates,
green bonds are supported by the financial regulators. One example is China that has a green
credit policy that incenfivizes banks to issue green products, such as green bonds. Hence, the
financial regulator or the central bank might start supporting green bonds. Then, again,
bankable projects are needed to atiract investors. Transparent and standardized reporting is
another way to attract investors. However, in general | think a central government and
regulatory support of green bonds might help to increase the number of green bonds in South
Asia and Africa.

Q. Do you think some lessons can be learned from the Chinese model?

OW: One lesson that can be leamed is that being green does not harm the economic

development, but in contrast can even accelerate it. Hence, for projects that issue bonds in
Pakistan, it should be always tested whether these projects can be conducted in a way that
they have a positive environmental confribution, and consequently qualify for green bonds.
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BOARD'S OVERSIGHT DURING
THE COVID-19 CRISIS

In May 2019, PICG conducted a survey on how boards in
Pakistan are navigating thelr companies during the COVID
19 crisis. Here is a summary of the findings - the detailed
report may be viewed on our websitel

The coronavirus has taken the world by storm — not only in terms of health concems,
social distancing, education, etc., but the effects that it has had on the overall global
economy by offecting consumer spending, disrupting supply chains, and placing
whole cities and countries under lockdown and quarantine. Corporations have had to
reconsider policies, budgets and forecasts, and redefine processes and procedures to
ensure business confinuity.

PICG conducted a short survey to gain insights about the response of corporate
boards in Pakistan fo the pandemic, its effects on the overall business environment,
and how boards dlong with management are collaborating and discussing the need
to pivot in light of curent circumstances.

Open survey ran for a week from May 8, 2020 fo May 14, 2020

* Responses received: 84
* Responses accepied: 45

GENERAL COMMENTS:

Boards have been quite proactive & responsive to the situation:

- conduciing Increased number of meelings,

- Increased communication both within the Boord and belween the board and
management, through frequent vifual meetings, emall communication, WhatsApp
groups, efc. Bottomn fo top communication is also being encouraged and faclifated
with boards looking fo management fo provide them with updaied Information on
which to base crucial decisions.

- revisiling risk assessmenis and forecasis.
- Inquiring about fechnological sirengths and weaknesses, elc.

Areas where a degree of uncertainty existed amongst respondents were:

- securlty and confidentiallty of company Information;

- ability to ulilize fechnology and IT infrasiructure;

- appropricaie review of Human Resource policles around fiexible working, employee
communication and wellare projecis; and

- whether the business model Is resilient enough to recover from the impact of the crisls
and manage poiential crisis in the future.
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Top risk areas that boards
reviewed and considered
during the crisis

Supply chain, Technology,
Market Risk, Product and
Marketing, Financial risks,

Other banking related risks

- Cash flow/ liquidity
- Human capital
- Regulatory compliance

Common key areas identified as being crucial to the continuity of the organization's
business operations:

« Sustainable and safe environment for employees

* Uninterrupted access to personnel, qualified human capital, retention of key staff

* Cash flow and liquidity management, tighter credit controls, reduced operating cost
* Financial well-being of customers

* Enhanced IT / digital infrastructure, fraining of management executives

* Data access management and protection.

« Support from Regulators and Banking System

* Government policies and commitments on revival of economy

» Ability to adapt to change and catering to indigenous business

1. Technology

- Expansion of business in digital products, adopting/utilizing technology for the new environment etc.

- Adoption of latest technological tools, greater opportunity for online trainings and remote learning
courses, flexible and remote working methodologies
- Online/ digital banking instead of visiting branches.

2. Quality, Health, Safety and Environment Management (QHSE)

- Eco friendly sustainability of products and methods

- New business opportunity in Health Care sector, investments in COVID related initiatives, new
product/vaccine development for COVID-19

- Areas of testing and products which facilitate in cleaning, etc., of establishment

3. Construction & Real Estate

- Govt. incentives for the construction & real estate indusiry, construction sector revival.
- Buy distressed properties
- A boost for our quick construction technology
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4. General

Resfructuring existing business, group level synergies, higher flexibility, better access to digital
business banking tools, possible tax and finance cost savings and learn to prepare for unexpected.
Increased focus on exports, volumetric growth through import substitution

Development of new and refined business models for our hospitality sector

Rationalization of cost and effective working capital management

Reduction of fixed costs, better utilization of office space, etc

Further increase in stakeholder trust by acting as a responsible corporate citizen

The current crises truly

showed the need for SOME
leadership and the Boards COMMENTS
capability of anticipating the RECEIVED
situation and making the WITH

S RESPECT TO
necessary decisions in a BOARD X

fimely manner. OVERSIGHT:

= 83 % of boards directed management to revise budgets / forecasts.

= Board and Senior Management of 1 respondent company voluntarily took a 50 % pay cut to ensure
retainment and payment of salaries to lower and mid management staff.

= Another respondent company availed the special concessional financing offered by the State Bank of
Pakistan/Banks (for salaries/wages of employees).

= Just over half of the respondents have a succession plan for senior executives but only 21.5% have such
a plan for board members. A respondent stated that although their company had a succession plan for
the Executive team, however, it was not necessarily suited in times of emergency.

= QOver 80% of the respondents agree that the Board has reviewed Human Resource (HR) policies. Most
boards have assigned the HR Committee and HR Departments with the task to come up with plans and
policies in light of the need to ‘work from home’, flexible hours, etc.

= |Information technology infrastructure and safeguarding data is one of the biggest challenges being
faced by a number of companies at this time. Many are also frying fo discover new avenues by which
technological tools could be used to their advantage.

= Most respondents felt that their respective companies would recover from the crisis, however, support
from the regulators and progressive policies from the Government would also play a key role.

= 40% of the oil and gas companies - neither agreed nor disagreed fo whether the businesses would be able
to recover from the crisis,

= 30.8% of the Banking and Finance respondents were not sure whether the security and confidentiality of
company information being accessed or stored remotely had been ensured.

= The business scenario planning and risk management framework are critical - complemented by
effective communication and people engagement.

= Unprecedented times have given every business a new dimension fo rethink the way they are doing
business and to be flexible enough to sustain such circumstances.

= Business Continuity Plans , risk areas , sustainable and redlistic business strategy are to be reviewed on a
regular basis.

= Need to rethink human resource deployment and rationdlization in the medium term.
= Virtual platforms have facilitated the holding of frequent short meetings to address emerging issues.
= |t is just the adjustment of timings and morale boosting of employees which finally pays the dividends.
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PICG SURVEY ON CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE PRACTICES
IN PAKISTAN

PICG launched a survey on Board Composition,
Practices and Remuneration (2019) on its

15 year anniversary. Enjoy a brief overview of
the survey and its findings — feel free to contact
us fo obtain a hard copy of the survey!

To gain an insight inta curent corporate govemance practices of companies in the
country and update information gathered from our 2016 Survey.

The survey covers the following broad areas;

Board Compaosition

Board Practices

Board Remuneration _

Respondent feedback on policies & practices

The results of the survey came at the dawn of a new era for listed companies with o
change in regulation from a ‘compliance based' approach to a ‘comply or explain' one
as a result of the Listed Companies [Code of Corporate Govemnance) Regulations, 2019
being issued by SECP on September 25, 2019, while the survey was still in progress.

The timing of our survey could not have been better as it provides a good overview of
existing practices, which can later be compared to the impact that the new regulation

may have on the overall compoerate govemance culture of listed companies in the
country.

Key Findings:
1. BOARD COMPOSITION

i. Total number of responses received : 213 (20146:54)
Responses accepled : 133 (201£4:55)

Average \ ii. Public Sector Companies{PSCs) have
board size the largest average board size

B approx




V. The number of boards
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viii. Upward frend in size of the board 3. REMUNERATION: TOP 3:
with female directors in sted, unlisted & public sector Socio ic
has gone up from companies, - S0c’o econam
i. The banking sector Is by far the problems in the couniry:
[ /e ﬁ S highest average pay master ; comuption, inconsistent
L. L® I 2. BOARD PRACTICES banks also have the highest policies and poliical
9 ?n u.,fr*‘ o ;]‘- ~ ‘average number of hours' that instability.
V4 @ .
ef I I. Average number of meefings in a mﬂm; mberse . ﬂnsgsel:duc;rlar
yet female directors year: 4 to 6 meetings of less than 4 ] . Corporate risks: regulatory
consfitute only hours duration each. i. The Chairperson is paid a fee that compliance, senior management
= % W is higher than other directors in succession planning and
[ tn | £ a"/0 ii. Public Sector Companies have the 22% of the companies (ie. from reputational risk.
1,77 /0 highest average number of meefings 25% exdra fo up to iwice as
of the total directors during the year (7 meetings); whereas much) iv. Technological disrupfions
banks generaily have longer meetings expected fo impact
(average of 6 hours per meefing) -~ oy companies: Arficial
v. The number of Independent " i i ii. ’“j er . JJL;' /0 intelligence, big dota and
Non-Executive Directors (INEDs) Is .. Most companies make of fhe companies provide internet of things.
on the rise, however, a quarter of arangements fo ensure that both iravel allowances/
the listed companles did not have director orientalion and fraining elrbussmernt o
the required number of INEDs as under an SECP approved direclor NEDs o attend board
mancated by fhe Code. fraining program (DTP) is ik d . Consideration should be
conducted for members of the it ol given for different sized
board. 1/3rd provide business companies who cannot bear
f”: air fravel the adminisirative expenses of
'y . Wrﬁ =7 implementation.
- :_L e" ﬂ’{ = ﬂif_.'.l [ N -\
Vi. VL /O V. rer 507%
' # g - Yy 207 . Regulators must behave as
of respondent of the fotal dreciors in v. OUN Yy »wQ /0 facilitators, independent of
companies have no respondent companies of the companies extemnal influences, and
directors aged below have obtalned the provide liability appropriate fime should be
AN ~ r s R required cerliﬁcalior? insurance cover fo given for compliance with
=19, vears under approved DTP’s thelr NEDs new regulations.
vi. Majority of companies set aside 4. OTHERS:
vil. Boards generally have directors a budget for executive
and general management. This is haif of the companies maintain a have adopted the Corporate
know-how. and development (Voluntary) Guidelines, 2013,
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SOCIAL PROGRESS INDEX: PAKISTAN
SCORECARD - AN INTERVIEW WITH
MICHAEL GREEN - CEQO SPI

Michael Green, CEO of the Social Progress Imperative, was
interviewed by PICG’s CEO, Ahsan Jamil to gain insights into
the essence of the Social Progress Index (SPI) and how it has
helped to advocate and advance policies on social reforms.

The Social Progress Imperative is a global nonprofit based in
Washington, DC providing decision-makers with data on the
social and environmental health of their societies. Since it first
launched in 2014, it has been embraced by innovative leaders
globally, who are applying its detailed framework to navigate
today’s social challenges and accelerate efforts to drive
equitable, inclusive and thriving societies.

Q. What is the motivation for creating the Social Progress Imperative and the index?

MG: The Social Progress Imperative was a product of the last global financial crisis of 2008. We had a
period of long economic growth, low unemployment, low inflation and everything seemed to be
fine. Until, suddenly it wasn't. That really showed us that there was something missing in the way that
we were thinking about the success of our societies.

We know that economic growth has played a huge role in lifting people out of poverty, so it is not
about throwing out the idea of economic growth, but rethinking it. The SPI we created was
designed not to replace GDP, but as a complement to GDP. It is built based entirely on social and
environmental indicators - outcome indicators - that can measure people's real quality of life and
we can then look at how economic growth can drive social progress or why it doesn't. That is the
mission of what we have been frying to do with the index over the last 7 or 8 years.

SPIreally interrogates and understands questions such as: when and how can we prioritize so we can
get more of the ‘good inclusive growth’, and less of the bad empty growth? Also, to make the case
for social progress. Investing in education or water or health is not a cost, it's actually an investment in
future economic success that will pay for itself. Because we have constructed the index in this way,
as a complement to GDP, we can do the robust analytics to really explore those issues.

Q. What are your views on social progress globally and in Pakistan based on
the latest assessment you have done and particularly of Pakistan’s social
progress standing?

MG: The global SPI covers 163 countries, so that's more than 95% of the world's population, and the
SPI fundamentally measures the same concepts as the UNs Sustainable Development Goals (SDGs).
So let me say, first of all, something about the state of the world. The good news is that the world is
making some progress - over the last 10 years, we've seen some steady progress for the world. Not
every country. Some countries like the United States and Brazil have gone backwards over that
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period but most countries are progressing. Progress isn't always in every area - we see that issues like
rights and inclusiveness have gone backwards. Issues like the environment are stagnating but we are
seeing improvements in health and education and particularly things like access to information and
communications, driven by mobile phones. But that progress in total is nowhere near fast enough to
get us towards the SDGs. Based on current frends, we think the world is going to hit the SDG targets
for 2030 in 2082; so there is a big wakeup call in this data that the SDGs are massively off track and
something has to be done and that has to be done by rich and poor countries dlike. It's not just about
poverty. It's about a whole set of issues affecting rich and poor countries.

In terms of Pakistan's performance, what we see is that Pakistan overall ranked 141st in the world out
of 163 countries on social progress. Is that good or bad? Well, if you look at GDP per capita, Pakistan
ranks 122nd. So Pakistan's social progress performance is lower than its GDP performance. Hence, we
would say Pakistan is an underperformer on social progress. It is not doing a good job of turning the
wealth it has into social progress. Now, that might be bad news but it's also an opportunity. It means
that there are probably some quick wins, some solvable problems where Pakistan can make quick
progress. Pakistan's progress over the last 10 years has been about 3 points, which is okay but not
nearly fast enough to get to where Pakistan wants to get to. So there's a real challenge in
accelerating social progress in Pakistan.
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Q. In peer countries of Pakistan where you have seen faster acceleration of
progress, what is it that they have done and what insights do you have to share
with us that might be helpful for policymakers and decision makers in Pakistan?

MG: We can look at this through a lens of: where are Pakistan's particular areas of strengths and

weaknessese The SPIis built around 12 components and we see a number of areas where Pakistan's

performance is significantly worse than you'd expect of a country with this GDP. We're not comparing

Pakistan to Denmark. We're saying compared to countries having a similar GDP, where is Pakistan's
performance? Not as good as it should be.
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First of all, personal safety. It is very shiking to know that the area of Pakistan's biggest weakness on
personal safely is fraffic deaths. It is a big killer around the world and Pakistan is doing particularly
badly on traffic deaths and that is a very solvable problem.

The second area is one famiiliar to many, and that is access to basic knowledge and school age
education: the guantity of kids in school and gender parity of kids going to school; and also the
quality of their education.

Pakistan is weak on access to information communications, including issues like intemet users and
mobile phone subscriptions. This seems to be a very solvable problem where Pakistan could make
progress very quickly and obviously a lot business can do. Likewise, Pakistan is weak in termns of health
and wellness: not matemal mortdlity, etc, but matters such s life expectancy and quality health
care, Further, it is particularly weak on environmental quality, particularty around air pollution and
particulate matter qir pollution as well as greenhouse gases.

We dlso see that areas around 'rights’ is a challenge in Pakistan, including freedom of expression and
property rights for women and finally — inclusiveness, which includes things lke discrimination, and
violence against minotifies. There are a number of areas to be addressed and some of those are
going to be easier than others.

Q. COVID has brought certain Issues to the forefront. How do you think that Is
changing the discourse between social priorifies and the social imperative?

MG: It is siriking that no one is safe from this disease, given that the President of the United States and
the President of Brazl, etc can get the disecase, but | think that shouldn't obscure the fact that the
impacts of COVID are founded in the inequalities in our societies.
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The poor are more vulnerable to this disease- both in terms of catching it and in terms of it having a
bad effect on their hedlth directly. They are more vulnerable to the economic spillover effects. It is
important to see that this is not just about the impact of the disease directly as a virus, but that it has
grown on the back of the inequadlities in our societies and lack of social progress is making us more
vulnerable to this. Lack of access to water and sanitation makes it hard for people to be clean. Lack
of education makes it harder to respond. Studies were done about the impacts of the 2005
earthquake in Pakistan, and the impact it had on school attainment in the affected arecs. Again,
particulany for the poorest households who at that fime were out of school, there was o huge effect-
actually setfing kids back on leaming about two or three years.

Analysis we have done shows how a lack of freedom and fransparency in society is actually
hindering the fight against the disease because you need an open society that can share
information freely to actually be able to respond to this.

It is important to note that we don't yet see the impacts of COVID in this datfa, as the crisis is foo
recent. We think that if the impact of COVID s as bad for social progress as it is for economic
development, then actually COVID could set the SDGs back by a further decade to 2092. A lot is
going to depend on how we respond to this to see how significant the impacts are going to be.

Q. Different countries and different markefs have evolved In the appreciation of
SPl and the ecosysiem of ESG dlignment with SDGs. Then there [s the
challenge of assessing whether those are being implemented and what the
outcome is. In that context, what would you advise policymakers in Pakistan
who want to sirengthen or build this ecosystem?

MG: SPI was always created 1o be a practical tool - by applying the global SPI but also building local
SPI's for states and cities and regions to redlly help policymakers in govemment and in business make
better decisions.

We are proud of the partnerships we have had with groups like the European Commission and other
govemments who are taking this data and using it as a fool to set budget priorities and drive better
outcomes or make better use of limited resources. Indeed, it is a great way to save money because it
has helped them reorient spending towards prevention rather than cure, and prevention often is
cheaper. For example, a local authority in London was telling us how they've used this to do early
intervention to prevent homelessness that saves them huge amounts of money.

Having data fo understand real community needs, to define interventions, to build parmerships with
other actors, and to frack progress can be an incredibly powerful tool. By giving a richer piciure
about a country orregion, we can help investors make better decisions, whether it's about where to
locate or which bonds to buy.

Q. What type of ‘shadow’ SDG-set-of-goals can the Soclal Progress Imperative
come up with?

MG: SPI measures the fundamental concepts within the SDGs so it can provide that proxy measure
which dlso can be applied at the sub national level. The SDG measurement challenge is enormous
for countries and is aimost impossible at the sub national level so we, and our partners around the
world, are using SPI as an SDG measurement tool for states or regions or cifies or communities. We
can take advantage of our freedom as an independent nonprofit to do some things that it would be
impossible for the UN system to do.

In every country, even small countries, there are regional differences so an average score is going to
be hiding things. We can dig behind that. Obviously, for a country of the size and diversity of Pakistan,
there'll be huge variation. For exarmple, when we built SPI for the regions of the European Union with
the European Commission, one of the surprising findings was that actudlly some of the poorer regions,
ke Poland, did not have a bad SPl because they did not have some of the problems that the more
industrialized regions had. Richer, more industrialized regions were not daing so well on social progress
because they had problems related to pollution that linked to health and a whole set of other issues.
It helps you think a bit more about that development process as well. 48



Q. What are the lessons we can leam from the top performing SPI countries?
Why do you think they are doing so well?

MG: Countries that have redlly commiitted to development for all are those that are doing the best.
Those that have not left people behind.

By comparing the United States (28th in the world) to some of the top performing Scandinavian
countries, we see that you can have the best health care in the world but huge numbers of the
population with no health care at all. In the US, you can go to the best schools in the world but 5o
many there are failing schools. This is one thing that Scandinavian countries have done very wellin
making sure that development has been inclusive and encompassing for everyone ranging
through the social safety nets but also through things around gender equity and other such matters
that they've pushed very, very hard.

When you think about the best performing countries, it is not just those on top as the absolute richest

but which of those countries are doing a particulary good job relative to their wealth. One of the
star performers in that regard is Costa Rica. Costa Rica has a modest level of GDP, around the
world average in fact, but its level of social progress is close to that of some European countries.
How has Costa Rica done that? Essentially it is because they have consistently, over a long period
of time, focused on certain things. They focused on educational equity in the 19th century and
introduced universal primary education and the fist higher education institution for women, so
they've had a strong generation of women leaders coming through for a very long time. Then,
since the Second World War, they had strong social systems and even got rid of their army so they
have not had that cost on the budget and really pushed such matters through.

Q. As a corporate governance Institute in Pakistan gender Is one of our key
priorities, alongside environment, health, safety and mental hegalth for
businesses. What Is your advice for a govemance Institute like PICG fo
bring social priorities into the prism of a boardrooms lens?

MG: The conversation about the contribution of business to our sociefies is one that is sfill foo
unstructured. If you look at the way companies are talking about their confribution to the SDGs or
their confribution to society, it's often a mix of defensive actions because this is where they are
being criticized; it is where the NGO voices are the loudest; or where PR opportunities are the
biggest with charismatic causes. Thinking in a more constructive and holistic way about the way
that companies confribute to social progress in the SDGs is really important.

Recognizing that so much of the conversation is about the bad things and not doing bad things but
we need to talk more about the positives. For example, in the last 20 years, there has been a huge
step forward in social progress because of the telecommunication sector. If we had leff that fo
govemment or the World Bank, there woulkd still be one in 1000 of us canying a mobile phone around
the size of a brick. That's a huge victory for the private sector. The private sector can also make huge
contributions in the area of rights. Businesses thrive in rule bound, consistent, effective legal systems.
Businesses make huge confributions around inclusion, not just on who they put on their boards, but
who they hire and the practices within those. Thinking holistically in @ more rigorous way about the
total confribution of business society, not just defending against the negative, is redlly important.

In tferms of ESG, | think the ‘S’ bit is often the most spongy as often it's such a number of different
indicators that companies fend fo throw out, what seems fo be the easiest for them, rather than
thinking really consistently and then establish the link between why govemance matters. Forthe 'E'’
and the '§',] think strong corporate govemance is going be tied info better outcomes as well; and
always back to this point of: this is not a cost, this is an investment in long term success. This is
actudlly going to make you stronger and more resilient for the long term.
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This is where | think COVID in a sense can be helpful to us as a wake-up call. Here is a health social
issue that has had a massive economic cost. If we could have our fime again and step back five
years, it would have been a fantastic investment if the world had put a bit more investment into
global public hedlth systems and other ways of making ourselves more resilient. With a fime
machine, we would say this is one of the best investments we can make but we didn't make it. This
is proof of the case that we all - govermment and business- need fo be befter ot managing the
social risks, otherwise it's going to cost us financiailly.
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Q. Long term thinking, as you mentioned, is not incentivized. COVID has
made the government and businesses sit up which is important. How do
we continuve fo incentivize social progress?

MG: We have to appreciate that CEOs are under a lot of pressure because they have to deliver
on their quarterly eamings. That is one of the big distortions that we have. One globally leading-
socidlly responsible- CEOQ, Paul Polman, from Unilever has made this point that he was only
allowed fo do these other things because he kept delivering on the quarterly eamings. It is very
hard for businesses to trade off the short term and the long tem, when actually the long term is
where the real value is. That is why | think the change has got fo come from the capital markets:
from investors and from fund managers. If we can make better informed choices, we will get
more sensible ratiocnal economic growth and be better societies collectively and individually.

It is starting to come. If we look at what we're hearing from Lamy Fink in the US and other investors,
there is a growing recognition about the fact that long term does matter and investors are willing
to think differently. If they give pemmission and pressure CECs to act differently, we may see quite
a radical change in corporate behavior. Itll be good for all of us.
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Populations using unsafe or Media censorshipfO=frequent; 2 (Bt ’ .
unimproved sanitation (%) 3286 10 @ @ 4rore) 166 129 @ Corruption (O=high; 100=fow) 32,00 19 * Cambodia
Intarnet users (% of pop) 55 183 O - « Gh
Shelter 6047 133 Inclusiveness 24,07 156 b ana
Access to electricity® of pop,) 7109 144 Health and Wellness 4162 162 © Acceptance of gays and lesblans * Djibouti
. (O=low; 100=high) 015 93
Life expectancy at 6Qyears) 1767 138
Household alr poliution attributable Discrimination and violence agalnst * Honduras
desths {deaths/f00,000} 100.65 153 Premature deaths from non- minorities (O=low; 10=high) 910 160 &
_ communicable diseases ‘ : - 3
chl’srac%% z;'n;le{;n J}J;I)sp a}nd technology o 2 @ {decths/T00,600) 624.61 67 O Equallity of polidcal power by gender - - * Nicaragua
Access to essentlal services -umequel povwan equal power i ¢« Cameroon
_ {O=none; 100=fulf coverage) 53.08 147 Equality of political power by
Personal Safety 5089 142 sociceconomic position (C=unequal -
> Ac_oess to q'uallty healthcare g power; 4=equal power) 093 152 >
Homiclde rate (deaths/100,000) 388 88 O  (O=unequal 4=equal) oa 183 0
P ived criminali S=high) 4.00 88 = Equallty of political power by soclal
Erceived crimina IMHGW;‘ l# o 4 N . - group roqlnequa’ power; 4=equaf
Polttical kilings and forture Enviromental Quality 5222 172 ) power) 057 145 &
{O=low freedom; i=high freedom) 0.21 153 @ Outdoor air pollution attributable
Traffic deaths (deaths/100,000, 2881 162 @  deoths(deaths100.000) o w9 Access to
CORequivaients) aen0 R - ‘ Expected years of tertlary education 045 1 oo
PRrtcUlefatiee 5851 170 li d Women with advanced educatiof¥®}  0.24 149
Blome protection 1055 m @ Quality weighted universitiegpoints) 63.00 20 &
Chable documents on 118 @
Notes o Key
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cotintriaa for wiich o il indax scone cowd be eeicidoted. © Overperforming by less than 1pt @ Undeperfarming by 1 or more pts. PROGRESS
2. Overafl index, campanent and dimensfon scores are on a 0-100 scoe; indfcmions scores are row Parforming within te expected range Mo olotter envediabile.
valas. IMPERATIVE
Comparing Countries
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Bargpadesh, Myanmar, Popua Mew Guineo, Cie o'volre. Mowrftania, Xenyo, Kyrgyzston, Mgera,
Suedan, Camirodia, Ghana, Dtbout;, Honduras, Nicarogug, ©
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Notice Of 16th Annual General Meeting

Notice Is hereby given that the 16th Annual General Meeting of the Pakistan Institute of Corporate
Governance will be held on Tuesday, October 27, 2020 at 4:30 P.M. at jits Center for Governance in Suite
# 315 adjacent to theregistered office of the Institute, Suite # 316, The ForLim, Khayaban-e-Jami, Block
- 9, Clifton, Karachi to transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS

To confirm the minutes of the 15th Annual General Meeting of the Institute held on October 25,
2019,

2. Toreceive, consider and adopt the Annual Audited Financial Statements of the Institute for the
yearended June 30, 2020 togetherwith the Directors’ and Auditors Reports thereon.

3. Tore-appoint EY Ford Rhodes as Auditors of the Institute for the year ended June 30, 2021.
OTHER BUSINESS
4. Any other businesswith the permission of the Chair.

By Order of the Board

e O
\ e .:‘;"
\"\.\"ET)‘
-
Rana Mustansir

Company Secretary
Karachi: October 5, 2020

Notes:

A member of the Company entitled to attend, speak and vote at this meeting may appoint
another member as her/his proxy to attend, speak and vote on her/his behalf.

2. Incase of corporate entity, the Board of Directors’ resolution / power of attorney with specimen
signature of the nominee shall be produced (unless it has been produced earller) at the time of
meeting.

3. Duly completed formsof proxy must be deposited at the Registered Office of the Institute oremail
scanned copy at info@picg.org.pk not later than 48 hours before the time appointed for the
meeting.

4. Members are requested to notify any changes In their addresses immediately.

5. Members are requiested to provide their email addresses to enable the Institute to send notices,
Financial Statements etc. via emall at the following email address: info@plicg.org.pk
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Chairman’s Review

On behalf of the Board of Directors, | am pleased to present to you my review of the performance of
Pakistan Institute of Corporate Governance (PICG ) forthefinancial year 2019-20. The Board has strived
to ensure that the management remains responsive towards changing environment which is of
particular relevance and importance due to unprecedented economic challenges posed by COVID-19.
The Institute has proactively started to offer on line training programs as it endeavours to stragically
manage changing economic realities, heightened amid COVID-19.

Finance

The Board has reviewed the Annual Report and Financial Statements and is pleased to confirm that it
considers that the repoit and financial statements, taken as a whole, are fair, balanced and
understandable.

Board Performance

As the Institute of Corporate Governance, the Board is fully cognizant of its stewardship role and the
responsibilities it must assume in addition to the minimum legal obligations imposed on the InstitLite
as asection 42 company.

The Board oversees the development and implementation of the Institute’s strategic, financial and
operating and investment plans, audit and internal control framework, and management succession
and management development plans. The Board has effectively delegated this work to Its Audit,
Human Resource and Remuneration, and Investment sub-committees.

In keeping with the provisions of the Code of Corporate Governance, the Board conducts an annual
formal performance evaluation of itself, its committees and individual board members. The Board
periodically reviews its mandate through the Board Charter to ensure that it remains appropriate to
the circumstances of the Institute. Each sub-committee has its own terms of reference.

Overall effectiveness of the Board was assessed as satisfactory. The overall assessment by the Board
was based on an evaluation of the following integral components:

1. Vision, mission and values: The Board membersare familiarwith the current vision, mission and
values and supported them and found them appropriate for the Institute.

2. Engagement in strategic planning: The Board has a clear understanding of the stakeholders
whom the organization is meant to serve. The Board also has the strategic vision of how the
organization should be evolving over the next ten years and steadily inching its progress with due
tracking.

3. Formulation of policies: The Board has established Terms of Reference for all Committees and
policies that cover all essential areas of board responsibility and operations of the InstitLite.

4. Monitor the operating activities: The Board is knowledgeable about the Institutes’s operations,
and has an effective process for tracking various programmes and activities per various
parameters.
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5. Adequacy of financial resources management: The Board Is knowledgeable about key aspects
relating to managing the financial resources of the Institute and provides appropriate direction
and oversight on a timely basis.

6. Provide effective fiscal oversight: The Board ensures that the budget reflects the priorities
established in the annual strategic plan and it complies with regulations governing the audit or
independent examination of financial statements and considers appropriately all
recommendations made In the management letter.

7. Actas a responsible employer: The Board has created necessary policies in order to ensure that
the organization behaves in an equitable and legal manner towards staff, contractors, vendors
and any other individual working on its behalf.

8. Relationship between Board and staff: Roles and Responsibilities of the Board and management
staff are clearly defined and understood and a climate of mutual trust and respect exists between
the Board and the Management.

9. Public image: The Board members promote positive image of the Institute In thelr respective
circles.

10. Review of the CEQ’s performance: The Board assesses the performance of the CEO in a fair and
systematic manner and ensures that CEO's pay is properly aligned with the Institute’s
performance, stakeholders’ Interest and sustainable success.

11. Board structure and dynamics: The size and composition of the Board Is adequate and consists of
a good mix of new and old directors, a Board framework is in place to govern Board procedures,
and the members are actively engaged in the work of the Board. The Board meets frequently
encugh to adequately discharge its responsibilities.

The strategic direction of the organization for the long term is clear and appropriate. We remain
committed to being accountable in a fair and transparent way to all our stakeholders , employees,
supporters and regulators.

Board Changes

During the year a casual vacancy occurred on the Board which was filled by the appointment of Dr.
Shamshad Akhtar. Dr. Shamshad’s immense experience in policy development will help guide the
Institute’s policy advocacy and her advisory expertise in governance and public-private partnerships
will help set the Institute’s strategic direction. Dr Shamshad underwent a formal orientation session in
which she was introduced to the CEC and his direct reports and was given a briefing onthe workings
of the Institute.

Your Institute has been at the forefront of driving gender parity on boards and we now have three
highly accomplished women members on the Board. They not only bring to bear their experience,
competence, and integrity to the Institute’s advantage but help us authentically role model what we
institutionally preach!




New Chief Executive Officer

During the year our CEO Sadia Khan resigned in order to pursue a career with the apex regulator
following her appointment as a Commissioner of SECP.

While the Board underwent a process to hire a new CEO, Ms. Arjumand Ahmed Shah a senior and long
serving member of PICG was given the responsibility to run the Institute as its Acting President & CEO
with effect from March 6, 2020. The BOD would like to acknowledge the exemplary services of
Arjumand and congratulate her on her appointment as the new COO of PICG.

This year the Board also set up a separate CEO Search Committee for a transparent selection and
appointment process forthe new CEQ. This Committee met seyeral times to interview several suitable
candidates and after due process recommended the selection of Ahsan Jamil who took over as CEOQ
with effect from July 16, 2020.

Ahsan Jamil has 30 years of extensive experience of both the business and not-for-profit sectors as
CEO, and has a social and impact investing background [n areas of education and health. He
understands the challenges of not-for-profit management, and brings with him a wide network of
corporaterelationships that would align to achieve the Institute’s vision, mission and objectjves.

On behalf of the Board | welcome Ahsan to the Institute.

The Board normally meets at least once in every quarter to consider operational results, once ayear to
consider the budget for the following year while one meeting is reserved to focus on corporate
strategy.

The Board agreed that the sub- committees were essential for supporting the functioning of the Board
in line with best practices of the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019
and Companies Act, 2017. The Board Audit Committee, Human Resource and Remuneration
Committee and the newly constituted Nomination Committee are all chaired by independent
directors. The Board has approved a Board Charter and Terms of Reference for each of these sub
committees.

The Board Audit Committee was formed under the Chairmanship of Mr. Ashraf Bawany, an
Independent Director. This committee met four (4) times during the year.

The Human Resolrce and Remuneration Committee was established under the Chairmanship of Mr.
Yousaf Hussain. This committee met twice (2) during the year.

The Board Investment Committee is chaired by Ms. Maheen Rahman and had one (1) meeting during
the year.

The Board has initiated an important conversation around constituting a nomination committee to
regularly review the structure, size and composition of the Board, and to consider succession planning
keeping in mind the skills which will be needed on the Institute’s Board to address challenges in the
future, The terms of reference of the Board Nomination Committee have already been approved and
the committee will be functional in the first quarter of 2020-21. Its first priority will be to identify and
review qualifications of board candidates from a wide range of backgrounds to stand for the Institute’s
upcoming elections in an EoGM In November 2020.
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The Board of Directors met six (6) times during the year. Aside from deallng with normal routine
functions and providing oversight to the management, the Board focused this year on succession
planning and selection and appointment of the CEO in addition to risk management (n light of the
direction received from the regulator. During the meetings it was agreed that a sharper focus was
required on diversifying and reducing reliance on the Flagship Director Training programme.

The Board recognizes that well-defined corporate governance processes are vital to enhancing
corporate accountability and is committed to ensuring high standards of corporate governance to
preserve and maintain stakeholder value and more. All Directors, including Independent Directors,
fully participated and contributed to the decision- making process of the Board.

As Chairman of your Institute, | will continue to be responsible for leading the Board, fostering a
culture of openness and constructive debate during which all views are heard and ensure that the
Board hears from an appropriate range of senior management. | will remain firmly committed to
ensuring that your Institute complies with all relevant codes and regulations and that the
management continues to make decisions that create value for you in the short, medium and long
term.

The Institute has outsourced its Internal Audit function to BDO Pakistan, an external audit firm.

This year as per best practices of the Code of Corporate Governance AF Fergusson Chartered
Accountants retired after having served PICG since inception. The Board and the management extend
their appreciation to the outgoing auditors, AF Fergusson Chartered Accountants for their services to
PICG.

| have had the privilege of serving with the highest quality professionals on the Board. My sincere thanks
to my fellow board members for their very constructive and professional participation at Board
meetings and | offer my sincerest thanks to my colleagues on the Board for their guidance and support.

On behalf of the Board, | would especially like to thank the two apex regulators, the Securities and
Exchange Commission of Pakistan for its unwavering support, and the State Bank of Pakistan for its
invaluable guidance, and our faculty, alumni, bankers and business partners, and vendors for their
confidence and support. | would also like to appreciate the Institute’s management team and staff for
getting through the COVID crisisand continuing to achieve the Institute’s goals.

The Board looks forward with confidence to the year ahead.

Riyaz Chinoy
Chairman
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Directors Report to the Members of
Pakistan Institute of Corporate

Governance (PICG)
for the Year Ended 30 June 2020

The Board of Directors of PICG is pleased to issue its report on the affairs of your Institute for the year
2019 -2020.

BOARD COMPOSITION AND REMUNERATION

The PICG Board is composed of fifteen members, including three accomplished women directors.
There are six Independent directors, eight are Non-executive, and the CEO is the only Executive
Director. The Board has three sub-committees - Audit, Human Resource and Remuneration, and
Investment. The Board has recently finalized the constitution of a Board Nomination sub-committee
which is scheduled to commence work inthe first quarter of 2020-2021. This is particularly important
in the context of the recently amended Articles of Association which amongst other changes reduce
the board size to a maximum of nine members and redefine Class-B members as life-long members
(see annexure-A for all amendment details) applicable from the up-coming elections which are due to
be held in November, 2020.

The names of members of the current Board and of its sub-committees are given in the Statement of
Compliance with the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance Regulations) 2019. No
remuneration is paid to the directors as they all serve on the Board pro bono except for the CEO.

MACROECONOMIC OUTLOOK

The impact of the global pandemic COVID-19 outbreak was felt throughout the country; while sadly
taking many lives it also disrupted livelihoods and the economy, including the activities of the
Institute. The Board was constantly monitoring the situation and, mindful of employees' health and
safety, ensured that the Institute’s staff worked from their homes. In the midst of the pandemic, with
imposed limitations on both in-person business activities and travel, the Institute successfully
launched its first virtual Director Training Program In April through Skype and later through Zoom.

INSTITUTE’S OPERATIONS

During the year ended 30 June 2020, the Institute conducted 11 Directors Training programscompared
to 24 programs last year. The withdrawal of the mandatory requirement of Director Training from the
Code of Corporate Governance has resulted in higher attrition rates for the Director Training program.
Moreover, the COVID pandemic further disrupted training activities; though the team rallied and
pivoted to quickly resume training by going online. The Institute has alse made a promising start,
diversifying its revenue sources through multiple specialized training workshops on related topics.




Training Programs

In the COVID-19 scenario, the Institute not only successfully launched its first ever virtual Directors
Training Program but successfully transitioned its entire training schedule including its specialized
workshops to the new online world. In keeping with its efforts towards program diversification, the
Institute continued to develop other programs in addition to those held in previous years. These
included a specialized governance training program for insurance companies, Companies Act 2017,
and a Board Committees Series which is a set of four separate focused workshops onthe Audit, Human
Resource, Risk, and Strategy sub-committees. The aim of the committee series is to help Directors
understand how their oversight is enhanced by the effective use of well-structured board
sub-committees. The [nstitute is also conducting pro bono webinars on corporate governance, the
current regulatory environment, and different areas of business management.

Board Evaluations Service

The number of board evaluations completed this year were 25, the same as last year. Board
Evaluations is a well-received service promoting the effectiveness of directors and board as a whole
as well asa good source of revenue generation for the Institute; especially asthe assessment measures
boards” performance against established criteria, and generates a comprehensive results report
focusing on critical areas of board competence.

Databank of Independent Directors

As PICG has been assighed to develop and maintain the Independent Directors Databank by the
Securities and Exchange Commission, the Institute has become the point of contact for individuals
interested in board appointments as independent directors and companies seeking to enhance their
Boards' capabilities through experienced, independent board members. In furtherance of its mission
to promote good governance and to raise the bar for corporate boards (n Pakistan the Institute
provided this as a pro bono service this year.

As of June 30, 2020, total registrations on the Databank increased to 2,505 Individuals and 400
companies l.e. an Increase of 142% and 185% respectively over last year; both sharp Increases
reflecting the response to the pro-bono pricing and the growing appreciation of the Databank.

Memberships

This year the Institute inducted 10 new members; 3 corporate and 1 full member along with 6
individual members compared to 7 last year; 5 corporate and 2 individual members. The approval
criteria for members has beensignificantly enhanced by SECP vide SRO No 733 (1)/2018, applicableto
charitable organizations and not for profit companies. This requires companies to ensure that their
members comply with the fit & proper criteria as laid down in the regulations.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

The total revenue fortheyear from operations dropped by Rs.34.5m (40%) to Rs.52.60m from last year.
The maln reasons for the drop in revenue Is the decrease in Director Tralning Program revenues
(Rs.31m) andthe discontinuation of charges forthe Databank of Independent Directors which reduced
reventles by another Rs.11.4m. Income from investments increased to Rs.11.07m compared to
Rs.7.01m last year, an Increase of 58Y%. The surplus forthis year, after charging all expenses reduced by
73% to Rs.8.08m compared to Rs.30.29m last year. A surplus has meant an increase of 8% in the
Institute’s fund size which is now Rs.108m.
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APPOINTMENT OF AUDITORS

The statutory auditors of the Institute EY Ford Rhodes have completed their audit of the financial
statements and the Statement of Compliance with the Code of Corporate Governance forthe financial
year ending 30 June 2020. M/s EY Ford Rhodes were appointed to act as external auditors of the
Institute for the financial year ending June 30, 2020 in the AGM held on October 25, 2019. M/s AF
Fergusson Chartered Accountants had served PICG very well as external auditors for many years, and
though not mandatory the Board in compliance with best practices of the Code of Corporate
Governance had recommended that new auditors be appointed in their place.

HUMAN RESOURCE MANAGEMENT AND SUCCESSION PLANNING
Separation of Roles and Responsibilities

Thelnstitute’ssuccessis based ona strong partnership betweenthe Board and the Chief Executiveand
his management team, and the clear separation of their roles and responsibilities. To this end a
change In the Articles of the Institute was made this year whereby the words “stewardship” and
“oversight” were used for the board and “managing” removed for good delineation of their role and
responsibilities and thereby movingto formalize another important best practice.

New Chief Executive Officer

The Board has appointed Mr. Ahsan Jamil as Chief ExecLitive Officer with effect from July 16, 2020,
Ahsan has diverse professional experience working in MNCs, private industry and the not-for-profit
philanthropic sector. He is a co-founder of Ecopack Limited and The Aman Foundation serving at both
as CEOfor seven yearseach. He has a strong track record in setting up and growing businesses as well
associal and impact investing in areas of health and education.

The Board welcomes the incoming CEO and wishes him the best in leading the organization through
its challenges and onwards to new heights.

Board Nomination Committee

The newly approved and constituted Board Nomination Committee will review board composition,
new board member nominations, and take recommendations forsuccession planning to the full Board
for approval.

INTERNAL CONTROLS, RISK PROFILE AND RISK MITIGATION

The Board has an effective Internal Control framework in place whereby the Board ensures that
accounting information and financial reporting is accurate, and the Institute is in compliance with
laws and regulations. The Institute’s Internal auditors evaluate the effectiveness of the Internal
controls and address internal and external risks. The Board actively discusses and implements
recommendations from the Board Audit Committee.




The main strategic risks to the Institute’s sustalnabllity are business risk and financial risk. Business
risk arises from the regulatory challenges for the Institute, the foremost being the provision in the
Code pertaining to Director Training which is now 'encouraged’ as opposed to previously being
‘mandatory’ which has given companies flexibility in terms of having their boards certified. This has
resulted in reduced number of participants for the Institute’s DTP. The other risk is the extension
allowed in directors certification up to FY2022 which will affect the uptake for the Director Training
Program. In addition, the elimination of registration fee for access to the Independent Directors
Databank has further constrained the Institute’s financial resources. However, the Management in
consultation with the Board of Directors has decided to develop a risk mitigation strategy through a
continuous dialogue with regulators, new program scheduling, and expenditure on technology to get
maximum benefit from online trainings. The Board expects this strategy to take shapein the coming
year.

STRATEGY

The Institute’s next 3-year strategy, driven by the Strategy Plan 2019 - 2022 approved by the Board, is
to enhance long term value creation and performance for all the participants in the corporate
governance ecosystem. With the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan's approval of the
Growth Enterprise Market (GEM) Listing Regulations to enable SMEs, green field projects, not for
profits, and other companies to conveniently raise capital through the capital markets the Institute
will be working strategically to create a governance ecosystem for small and medium sized businesses,
family businesses, not for profits, and startups.

The greatest impact of financial risk on the Institute’s performance is in terms of its service-based
business model, and its competitive positioning with low entry barriers for competitors which impact
financial sustainability. To mitigate these risks, the Board has approved the Institute’s strategic plan to
expand the scope for technical alliances to create new programs, and to reach out beyond the
Institute’s primary market of corporate board membership to small and medium sized companies,
family owned businesses, not for profits, and startups.

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

An important part of the Institute’s strategy is to engage and work closely with regulators,
international corporate governance bodies and development institutions to advance the good
governance agenda In Pakistan. In this regard, the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan
has recently assigned the Institute the task of developing a capital market implementation roadmap
under the Asian Development Bank’s Capital Market Development Project (CMDP). PICG is also a
member of the International Corporate Governance Network (ICGN) and the Global Network of
Director Institutes (GNDI) and has regular engagements with these international networks for survey
based research and policy advocacy.

BUSINESS CONTINUITY

Despite the pandemic and ensuing lockdown, the Board is pleased to report that the Institute coped
well with the situation and operations did not shut down for a single day. Although an effective audit,
risk and reporting framework is in place at your Institute, the COVID-19 situation has presented the
Board and Management with the additional opportunity to address a formal business continuity plan,
and to discuss and update it regularly. As the Institute is a lean, knowledge-based organization, this
plan would alse ensurethat the Institute actively recruits, retains and developsfuture leaders, and has
a robust leadership pipeline in place.

65
e

N  PICG

Pakistan Insfinde of Corporate Governance

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

The Board has adopted corporate social responsibility into the Institute’s programming by providing a
discotnted fee structure for women aspiring for board positions as well as for board members of not
for profit organizations to enable them to obtain PICG's Director certification. This CSR policy Is
embedded in the Institute’s agenda for increased inclusivity and for enhancing PICG’s ability to
influence policy making.

IMPLICATIONS OF COVID-19

During the year, the Institute has adopted IFRS-16 for its financial statements for the year ended June
30, 2020 as PICG has lease contracts for its head office in The Forum, Karachi. After evaluation, it has
been concluded that there are no material Implications of COVID-19. Accordingly, In compliance with
SECP's requirement vide Circular No. 26 of 2020, this fact has been disclosed in the financial
statements.

Moreover, In compliance with the Commission’s recommendatlons to consider and evaluate the risks
forthe health, safety and wellbeing of all stakeholders, the Board held all of its meetings via video
conferencing. In view of the InstitLite’s upcoming AGM and elections, the Board is fully cognizant of its
responsibility to ensure the health and safety of our members and will act in accordance with
established SOPs to facilitate members.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

As requlred under the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations 2019 the
Directors are pleased to state as follows:

+ The financial statements of the Institute present fairly its state of affairs, the results of its
operations, cash flows and changes In equity.

+ Proper books of accounts of the Institute have been maintained.

+ Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied In preparation of financial
statements and accounting estimates are based on reasonable and prudent judgment. Proper
accolinting records have been maintained by the InstitLite.

+ International Financial Reporting Standards, as applicable to the | nstitute, have been followed
in preparation of financial statements and deviation, if any, from these have been adequately
disclosed and explained.

« The Chief Executive Officer and the CFO have reviewed the financlal statements and the
Chairman’s Review and Directors Report. They acknowledge their responsibility for true and
fair presentation of the financial statements, accuracy of reporting, compliance with
regulations and applicable accounting standards.

+ Thesystem of internal control is sound in design and effectively implemented and monitored.

+ There are no significant doubts about the Institute’s ability to continue as a going concern.
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« The Institute has issued a statement of compliance with the Code of Corporate Governance
which has also been reviewed by the auditors of the Institute.

+ There has been no material departure from the best practices of corporate governance.

+ The Board of Directors of the Institute is committed to good corporate governance and
appropriate steps aretaken to comply with best practices.

FUTURE OUTLOOK

Asthe premier platform for good corporate governance, PICG intendsto promote a wider Governance
model that includes ESG and the new responsible business agenda. Purposeful collaborations and
partnership will be leveraged to create greater momentum by promoting accelerated board diversity,
a more inclusive and productive workforce, and business alignment with the United Nations’
Sustainable Development Goals; and to undertake a collaborative development of an Environmental,
Social, and Governance (ESG) framework that would attract responsible international capital into
Pakistan.

At the same time the focus of our efforts will not only be on our member corporations, but small and
medium enterprises, not for profits, and start-ups to enable the early seeding of good governance
practice and building the governance culture for longer term impact and returns.

Asthe impact of corporate governance on business practices and public policy becomes stronger, the
Institute will enhance its policy advocacy role through a concerted strategy In FY 2020-2021.

At a more functional level, the Institute continues to adapt the Directors Training Program curriculum
to evolving international practices and innovations in corporate governance by adding new modules
and revising existing ones to keep our DTP at par with the best global director training programs. A
new modular structure will reflect the latest thinking in corporate governance and include content on
how boards can meaningfully engage with issues like technology governance, cybersecurity, and
dispute resolution as they enter the new decade. We are confident that directors will continue to find
the new curriculum both rigorous and relevant.
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Statement of Compliance with Listed
Companies (Code of Corporate
Governance) Regulations, 2019
Pakistan Institute of Corporate
Governance (PICG)

Year Ended 30 June 2020

This statement is being presented to voluntarily comply with the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate
Governance) Regulations 2019 and establishes that PICG is managed in compllance with the best
practices of corporate govemance. PICG is not required to comply with the provisions of the Code of
Corporate Governance which are applicable to listed companies. Howevet, in order to ensure the
implementation of best practices in its own operations, the Board of DRirectors of PICG decided to
meastire its governance agalnst the requirements of the Code of Corporate Governance Issued by the
Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP). Accordingly, it complies with such provisions
of the Code that specifically relate to its activities and operations.

The Institute has complied with the requirements of the Regulations applicable to the activities and
operations of PICG in the following manner:

1. Thetotal humber of directors are 15 as perthe following:

Male: 12
Female: 3

2. Thecomposition of the Board Is as follows:

i. Independent Directors 1. Mr.Riyaz T.Chinoy (Chairman)
2. Dr.Shamshad Akhtar
3. Ms.Saima Kamila Khan
4. Mr. Ageel A. Nasir
5. Mr. Muhammad Ashraf Bawany
6. Mr.Yousaf Hussain
ii. Non-execLtive Directors 7. Ms.Maheen Rahman (Founding Director)
8. Mr. Abid Hussaln (Founding Director)
9. Mr.Ashfaq Yousuf Tola (Founding Director)

10, Mr. Faisal Akhtar (Founding Director)
11, Mr. Farrukh lgbal (Founding Director)
12. Mr. Inayat Hussain (Founding Director)
13. Mr. Zubair F. Tufail (Founding Director)
14, Mr. Yoll Hang (Founding Director)

10.

Pakistan Insfinde of Corporate Governance

iii. Executive Directors 15. Mr. Ahsan Jamil (Chief Executive Officer)
iv. Female Directors (2 Independent & 1 Dr.Shamshad Akhtar
Non-executive) Ms. Saima Kamila Khan

Ms. Maheen Rahman

The directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a director on more than seven listed
companies.

The Institute has prepared a "Code of Conduct” for its visiting faculty, employees and Board and
has ensured that appropriate steps have been taken to disseminate it throughout the Institute
alongwith its supporting policies and procedures.

The Board has developed a vision / mission statement, overall corporate strategy and significant
policies of the Institute. The Board has ensured that complete record of particulars of the
significant policies along with their date of approval or updating is maintained by the Institute.

All the powers of the Board have been duly exercised and decisions on relevant matters have
been taken by the Board as empowered by the relevant provisions of the Act and these
Regulations.

The meetings of the Board were presided over by the Chairman and, in his absence, by a director
elected by the Board for this purpose. The Board has complied with the requirements of the Act
and the Regulations with respect to frequency, recording and circulating minutes of meetings of
the Board.

No remuneration is paid to the directors except for the executive director for whose remuneration
the Board has a formal policy and transparent procedures in accordance with the Act and these
Regulations.

The Board Is in compliance with the requirement of Directors’ Training program as nine Directors
have completed the Directors Training.

- Mr. Riyaz T. Chinoy Independent Director

- Mr. Aqeel A. Nasir Independent Director

- Mr. Muhammad Ashraf Bawany Independent Director

- Mr. Yousaf Hussain Independent Director

- Ms. Saima Kamita Khan Independent Director

- Mr. Faisal Akhtar Non-Executive Director
- Ms. Maheen Rahman Non-Executive Director
- Mr. Inayat Hussain Non-Executive Director
- Mr. Ahsan Jamil Executive Director

New appointment of company secretary was made during the year. The Board has approved
appointment of company secretary and the terms of continued service of the chief financial
officer and internal audit coordinator, including their remuneration and terms and conditions of
employment and complied with relevant requirements of the Regulations. The internal audit
function has been outsourced to BDO Ebrahim & Co. Chartered Accountants.
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11.

12.

Chief Financial Officer and Chief Executive Officer duly endorsed the financial statements before

approval of the Board.

The Board has formed committees comprising of members given below:

a) Audit Committee 1. Mr.Muhammad Ashraf Bawany
{Independent Chairman)
2. Mr.Ashfaq Yousuf Tola (Non-executive
Director)
3. Mr. Faisal Akhtar (Non-executive
Director)
4. 4. Mr. Farrukh Igbal (Non-executive
Director)
b) Human Resource & RemLineration 1. Mr. Yousaf Hussain
Committee (Independent Chalrman)
2. Mr.Riyaz T. Chinoy
(Independent Director)
3. Mr. Abid Hussain (Non-executive
Director)
4. Mr.Aqeel A. Nasir {Independent
Director)
5. Mr.Inayat Hussain (Non-executjve
Director)
6. Mr.Ahsan Jamil (Executive
Director; President & CEQ)
¢) Investment Committee 1. Ms. Maheen Rahman (Non-executive
Chairperson)
2. Mr.YouHang (Non-executive Director)
3. Mr.Zubalr F. Tufail (Non-
executive Director)
d) Nemination Committee 1. Mr.Riyaz T. Chinoy
) _ {Independent Chairman)
(with effect from Q1 FY2020-2021) 2 e Shamekaddiiar
{Independent Director)
3. Mr.Yousaf Hussain
{Independent Director)
4. Mr. Ahsan Jamil (Executive

Director; President & CEO)

13.

14.

=
(¥

17.

13.

Pakistan Insfitte of Corporate Governance

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee, Human Resource & Remuneration Commitiee,
Investment Committee and Nomination Committee have been formed, documented and advised
to the committees for compliance.

The frequency of meetings of the committees were as perfollowing:
a. Audit Committee: Four (4) quarterly meetings were held during the year ended June 30, 2020,

b. Human Resource & Remuneration Committee: Two (2) meetings were held during the
yearended June 30, 2020.

c. Investment Committee: One (1) meeting was held during the year ended June 30, 2020.

The Board has outsourced the intermnal audit function to BDO Ebrahim & Co. Chartered
Accountants who are considered suitably qualified and experienced for the purpose and are
conversant with the policies and procedures of the Institute.

The statutory auditors of the Institute have confirmed that they have been given a satisfactory
rating under the Quality Control Review Program of The Institute of Chartered Accountants of
Pakistan and registered with Audit Oversight Board of Pakistan, that they and all their partners
are in compliance with International Federation of Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on code of
ethics as adopted by The Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan and that they and the
partners of the firm involved in the audit are not a close relative (spolise, parent, dependent and
non-dependent children) of the chief executive officer, chief financial officer, head of internal
audIt, company secretary or director of the company.

The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to provide
other services except in accordance with the Act, these Regulations or any other regulatory
requirement and the auditors have confirmed that they have observed IFAC guidelines In this
regard.

We confirm that all requirements of regulations 3, 6, 7, 8, 27,32, 33 and 36 ofthe Regulations have
been complied with.

The above statement was approved for issuance by the Board of Directors in its meeting held on
September 18, 2020.

On behalf of the Board

RIYAZ T. CHINOY
Chairman
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Review Report to the Members Independent Auditor’s Report

To the members of Pakistan Institute

EY B i e e of Corporate Governance
Prc:gressive Platza. Bfaum;}é\; 3R§ad E;{:‘;Z:f 19 S?;’:i 1965 g
suggateter Gyl Report on the Audit of the
BRAFT Financial Statements

To the members of Pakistan Institute of Corporate Governance

Review Report on the Statement of Compliance contained in Listed Companies (Code of
Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the Listed Companies (Code of
Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019 (the Regulations) prepared by the Board of Directors
of Pakistan Institute of Corporate Governance (the Institute) for the year ended 30 June 2020 in
accordance with the requirements of regulation 36 of the Regulations.

The responsibllity for compliance with the Regulations Is that of the Board of Directors of the
Institute, Our responsibllity Is to review whether the Statement of Compliance refiects the status
of the Institute's compliance with the provisions of the Regulations and report If it does not and
to highlight any non-compliance with the requirements of the Regulations. A review Is limited
primarily to inquiries of the Institute's personnel and review of various documents prepared by the
Institute to comply with the Regulations.

As a part of our audit of the financial statements we are required to obtain an understanding of
the accounting and internal control systems sufficient to plan the audit and develop an effective
audit approach. We are not required to consider whether the Board of Directors' statement on
internal control covers all risks and controls or to form an opinion an the effectiveness of such
internal controls, the Institute's corporate governance procedures and risks.

The Requlations require the Institute to place before the Audit Committee, and upon
recommendation of the Audit Committee, place before the Board of Directors for their review and
approval, its related party transactions. We are only required and have ensured compllance of this
requirement to the extent of the approval of the related party transactions by the Board of
Directors upon recommendation of the Audit Committee.

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe that the
Statement of Compliance does not appropriately reflect the Institute's compliance, in all material

respects, with the requirements contained in the Regulations as applicable to the Institute for the
year ended 30 June 2020,

o A~

Chartered Accountants
Place: Karachi

Date:

//

EY

Building a better
working world

Opinion

We have audited the annexed financial statements of Pakistan Institute of Corporate Governance (“the
Institute”), which comprise the statement of financial position as at 30 June 2020, the income and
expenditure statement, the statement of cash flows and the statement of changes in fund balance for
the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information, and we state that we have obtained all the
informatlon and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and bellef, were necessary for the
purposes of the audit.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
statement of financial position, the income or expenditure statement, the statement of cash flows and
the statement of changes in fund balance together with the notesforming part thereof conform with
theaccounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and give the information required by
the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017), in the manner so required and respectively give a true and fair
view of the state of the Institute’s affalrs as at 30 June 2020 and of the profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, or the surplus, the changes in accumulated fund and its cash flows for the
year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our auditin accordance with International Standards on Auditing (I1SAs) as applicable in
Pakistan. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities forthe Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are Independent of
the Institute in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants as adopted by the Institute of Chartered AccoLintants of Pakistan
(the Code) and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained [s sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.
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Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the
requirements of Companies Act, 2017(XIX of 2017) and for such internal control as management
determines [s necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Institute’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Institute or
to cease operations, or has no reallstic alternative but to do so.

Board of directors are responsible for overseeing the Institute’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives areto obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as awhole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with |SAs as applicablein Pakistan will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fralid or error and are considered material
if, Individually or In the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit [nh accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

« |dentify and assesstherisks of material misstatement of the financlal statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a mater(al misstatement resulting from fraud s higherthan for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

»  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Institute’s internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

«  Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the [nstitute’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our audltor's report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Institute to cease to continue as a going concern.

/9
e

N  PICG

Pakistan Insfinde of Corporate Governance

+  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, Including
the disclosures, and whetherthe financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events ina manner that achievesfair presentation.

We communicate with the board of directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the board of directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Based onour audit, we further report that in our opinion:

a) proper books of account have been kept by the Institute as required by the Companies Act, 2017
(XIX of 2017);

b) thestatement of financial position, the income and expenditLre statement, the statement of cash
flows and the statement of changes in fund balance together with the notes thereon have been
drawn up In conformity with the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and are in agreement with the
books of account and returns;

c) investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year were for the
purpose of the Institute’s business; and

d) no Zakat was deduictible at soLirce Linder the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVII1 of 1980),
Other matter

The financial statements of the Institute for the year ended 30 June 2019, were audited by another
auditor who expressed an unmodified opinion on those statements on 25 September2019.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Shaikh Ahmed
Salman.

." f’,{_ A be_\_‘,

Chartered Accountants
Date: 24 September 2020

Place: Karachi




N  PICG

Fakistan Insfiude of Corparate Governance

Statement of Financial Position

As at June 30, 2020

Income And Expenditure Statement
For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

2020 ey 2020 2019
Note Rupees Rupees Note Rupees Rupees
ASSETS INCOME
Naon-current assets
Property and equipment 3 5,227,461 2,296,489
Right of use asset 4 17,292,440 Revenue from services 15 52,604,385 87,118,900
Financial assets at amortised cost- Long-term 5 14,581,240 B,007,296
Security deposits 6 1,540,470 1,540,470 EXPENDITURE
38,641,611 11,844,255
Currenﬂ 8SETS — Salaries. allowances and benefits 27,142,502 32,975,898
Recelvable from members 7 2,007,345 3,713,376 prskaseinia] saniee foE 16 11,818,000 13,500,149
Short-term prepaymentsand advances B 287,505 1,402,928 Rent 7 455876
Financial assets at amortised cost - Short-term 9 66,735,057 74,024,259 Gk _ ) A ~
Ofierraraieablivs 3,105,776 7,762,944 Depreciation on property and equipment 1,135,821 582,604
Tax refunds due from Government 10 12,246,937 11,244,959 Depreciationon right of use asset 4,323,110
Cash and bank balances 11 10,699,626 1,589,945 Travelling and conveyance 953,641 1,362 357
95,082,246 99,738,411 Utilities 1,049,605 869.724
Printing and stationery 1,038,848 1,079,216
Total assets 133,723,857 111,582,666 Insurance 228 313 198 837
] 1J0,G3
Repair and maintenance 1,033,866 1,006,772
FUND BALANCE & LIABILITIES Expected creditloss 952,625 )
Conference cost 974,725
Fund balance - At
Accurmitlated fund 105,606,404 97,524,244 Other expenditure 17 2,667,390 4,808,313
53,319,446 63,839,747
Non-current liabilities
Lease liability 12 10,200,712 Operating (deficit) [ surplus (715,061) 23,279,153
Otherincome 18 11,043,470 7,010,306
Cuirent liabilities
Fees in advance 13 9,721,387 5,850,333 Finance cost (2,246,250)
Current portion of lease liability 12 5,819,758
Other payables 1,568,590 2,186,345 Surplus for the year 8,082,160 30,289,459
Accrued expenses 806,556 6,021,744
: il )
FLALG A 14,098,422 Other comprehensive income -
CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 14 L.
Total comprehensive income 8,082,160 30,289,459
Total Fund Balance and Liabilities 133,723,857 111,582 666
The annexed notes from 1 to 25 form an integral part of these financial statements. The annexed notes from 1 to 25 form an integral part of these financial statements.
. o N \ 7 '-_'\
\ / - /o
‘\ N ] / . F, (-T“ ] f . P
50 SIS (hed >79) a&w (et
'S - \ R - = \ >
& '
Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive Directpr Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive Directpr
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Fakistan Insfiude of Corparate Governance

Statement of Changes in Fund Balance Statement of Cash Flows

= = ; = 4 - Ly ) T e ; - 4 -
For theYear Ended June 30, 2020 For the Year Ended June 30, 2020
2020 201%
Accumulated Mote Rupees Rupees
Fund CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
R surplus for the year 8,082,160 30,289.459
upees Adjustmentlor:
Return an bank balances and investmenis (11,070,009) (7.,010.306)
Balance as at July 01, 2018 67,234,785 Depreciation 1,135,821 582,604
Depreciation Gn lease 4,323,110 -
- . = Interestcoston leass 2,240,559 -
Total Comprehensive Income for the year ended June 30, 2019 30,289,459 e
Loss on disposal of fixed assat 26,539
Expected creditloss 952,625 -
Balance at June 30, 2019 97,524,244 Surplus before working capital changes 5,690,805 23,861,757
Decrease [ (increase] in current assets:
Total Comprehensive Income for the year ended June 30, 2020 8,082,160 Receivable from members 1,079,281 (1,745,501)
Short term prepayments and advances 1,115,424 (108,431)
Other raceivables (7 1 60
Balance at June 20, 2020 105,606,404 Dtharretalvaties ST (7,14,600)
6,525,996 (8,995,532)
{Decrease) [ Increase in current liabilities:
Feosinadvance 3,871,064 (129,345)
The annexed notes from 1 to 25 form an integral part of these financial statements. Aceried expenses (5,214,788) 3504750
Other payables (617,755) 1565435
{1,961,479) 4 945 840
Cash generated from operating operations 10,255,322 19.812.065
Withholding tax paid {1,001,978) (695,727)
Net cash generated from operatling activilies 9,253,344 19116338
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of property and squiprment (4,123,232) (248.,521)
Proceeds rom maturity of PIB's 8,733,334 -
Purchase of PIB's (5,922,003) (7.946,943)
Praceeds from disposal of operating fixed asset 29,900 -
Return on bank balances and investments received 10,916,819 6.9449 953
het cash generated from [ {used in) inyesting activities 9,634,818 (1,245,511)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Payment against lease liabilities (7,835,598) -
Net cash used in financing activities (7,835,598)
Netincrease in cash and cash equivalents 11,052,564 17,870,827
Cash and cash equivalents a1 beginning of the year 66,382,118 48511292
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 19 77,434,683 66,382,119

The annexed notes fom 1 to 25 forro an integral part of these financial statements.

0% et 105 o Clet

Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive Dire';tbr Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive Dire';tbr
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Notes to and Forming Part of the
Financial Statements

For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

1‘

1,1

1,2

p I

THE INSTITUTE AND ITS OPERATIONS

Pakistan Institute of Corporate Governance (the Institute) was incorporated in Pakistan asa
Company Limited by Guarantee without share capital on December 01, 2004 under Section 42
of the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984 (now section 42 of the Companies Act, 2017). Its
members Include 94 (June 30, 2019: 90) corporates, 27 (June 30, 2019: 21) individual and the
following folinding members:

- Securities & Exchange Commission of Pakistan

- The State Bank of Pakistan

- The Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited

- Institute of Business Administration

- Lahore University of Management Sclences

- Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan

- Institute of Corporate Secretaries of Pakistan

- Institute of Cost and Management Accountants of Pakistan

- Qverseas |nvestors Chamber of Commerce and Industry

- Federation of Pakistan Chambers of Commerce and Industry

- Insurance Association of Pakistan

- Mutual Funds Association of Pakistan

- Pakistan Banks' Association

The main objective of the Institute is to promote awareness of corporate governance and
encourage compliance with good corporate governance practices by corporate bodies and
professionals. Inthis regard, the Institute also conducts Directors' Training Program based on
a standard curricula for which the Institute has arrangements with foreign organisations.
The registered office of the Institute is situated at Office Sujte 316, “The Forum’, Clifton,
Karachi, Pakistan.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied inthe preparation of these financlal statements are

set out below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless
otherwise stated.

89

2.1

2.1.1

2.1.2

2.1.3

2.1.4

Pakistan Insfinde of Corporate Governance

BASIS OF PREPARATION
Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and
reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards as
applicablein Pakistan for financial reporting comprise of:

- International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS Standards) issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (IASB) as notified under the Companies Act, 2017; and

- Provisions of and directives issued underthe Companies Act, 2017.

Where the provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ from the
IFRS standards, the provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 have
been followed.

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except
as otherwise disclosed inthe respective accounting policies notes

These financial statements are presented in Pak Rupees which is the Company's functional
and presentation currency.

STANDARDS, INTERPRETATIONS AND AMENDMENTS APPLICABLE TO THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Institute has adopted the following accounting standards and amendments of IFRSs and
the improvements to accounting standards which became effective during the current year:

Effective date (annual
periods beginning
Standard or Interpretation on or after)

Lease - IFRS 16 January 01, 2019

Definition of a Business - Amendmentsto IFRS 3 January 01, 2020
Interest rate benchmark reform - Amendment to IFRS 9,
IAS 39 and IFRS 7 January 01, 2020

Definition of Material - Amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8 January 01, 2020

Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions - Amendment to IFRS 16 June 01,2020
Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before Intended Use -
- Amendmentsto IAS 16 January 01, 2022
Onerous Contracts - Costs of Fulfilling a Contract
-Amendmentsto |AS 37 January 01, 2022
Classification of llabilities as current or non-current
-Amendment to IAS 1 January 01, 2022
Saleor Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate

or Joint Venture - Amendment to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 Not yet finalized

86
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2.1.5

The above standards and amendments are not expected to have any material Impact on the
Fund's financial statements in the period of initial application except for IFRS 16. The impact
of adoption of IFRS 16 are described in note 2.1.5 below”:

The IASB has also issued the revised Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting (the
Conceptual Framework) in March 2018 which is effective for annual periods beginning on or
after January 01, 2020 for preparers of financial statements who develop accounting policies
based on the Conceptual Framework. The revised Conceptual Framework is not a standard,
and none of the concepts override those In any standard or any requirements in a standard.
The purpose of the Conceptual Framework is to assist IASB in developing standards, to help
preparers develop consistent accounting policies if there is no applicable standard in place
and to assist all partiesto understand and interpret the standards.

Further, following new standards have been issued by IASB which are yet to be notified by the
SECP for the purpose of applicability in Pakistan.

IASB Effective date

(annual periods
Standards beginning on or after)
IFRS 1- First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting
Standards July 01, 2009

IFRS 17 - Insurance Contracts January 01, 2023

IFRS 16 - Leases

During the current year, the Institute has adopted IFRS 16 as issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (IASB) in January 2016.

IFRS 16 supersedes IAS 17 Leases, IFRIC 4 Determining whether an Arrangement contains a
Lease, SIC-15 Operating Leases-Incentives and SIC-27 Evaluating the Substance of
Transactions Involving the Legal Form of a Lease. The standard sets out the principles for the
recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases and requires lessees to
account for most leases under a single on-balance sheet model.

The Institute has lease contracts for its head office in The Forum, Karachi. Before the adoption
of IFRS 16, the Institute classified each of its leases (as lessee) at the inception date as an
operating lease. In an operating lease, the leased property was not capitalised and the lease
payments were recognhised as rent expense in income and expenditure statement. Any
prepaid rent was recognised under short term advances and prepayments.

After the adoption of IFRS-16, the Institute has accounted for the lease contract of its head
office as per the requirements of the new standard for lessee and recognized a right-of-use
asset against a lease liability. Any advance receipts are net off against theright-of-use asset as
disclosed inthe table below.

As permitted by the transitional provisions of IFRS 16, the Institute elected not to restate the
comparative figures and not to adjust the opening retained earnings. Accordingly,
adjustments to the carrying amount of assets and liabilities has been recognised in the
current year.

8/
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The Impact of adoption of IFRS 16 are described below:

Impact on Unconsolidated statement of financial position as at July 01,2019

----- (Rupees})-----

Assets
Right-of-Use (RoU) asset 21,615,550
Liabilities
Lease liability 2li615i5-50
Weighted average discount rate at 01 July 2019 13-14%
Impact on statement of profit or loss for the year

ended June 30, 2020
Depreciation on right-of-use asset (4,323,110)
Finance cost (2,240,558)

Had this standard not been applied, assets and liabilities would have been lower by Rs. 17.2
million and Rs.16 million respectively. Rent expense would have been higher by Rs.6.8 million
and depreciation charge and mark-up expense would have been lower by Rs.4.2 million and
Rs.2.2 million respectively.

Summary of new accounting policies

Set out below arethe new accounting policies of the Institute upon adeption of IFRS 16, which
have been applied from the date of initial application:

Right-of-use assets

The Institute recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the
date the underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less
any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement
of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities
recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives received. Unless the Institute is reasonably
certain to obtain ownership of the leased asset at the end of the lease term, the recognized
right-of-use assets are depreciated using straight line method. Right-of-use assets are subject
to impairment.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Institute recognises lease liabilities measured at
the present value of lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments
include fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives
receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected
to be pald under residual value guarantees. The lease payments also include the exercise
price of a pLirchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by the Institute and payments of
penalties for terminating a lease, if the lease term reflects the Institute exercising the option
to terminate. The variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are
recognised asexpenseinthe period on which the event or condition that triggers the payment

OCCUrs. 88
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In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Institute uses the Incremental
borrowing rate at the initial application date if the interest rate implicit in the lease is not
readily determinable. After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is
increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made. In
addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification, a
change in the lease term, a change in the in-substance fixed lease payments or a change in
the assessment to purchase the underlying asset.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

TheInstitute applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases (i.e,,
those leasesthat have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement dateand do
not contain a purchase option). It also applies the lease of low-value assets recognition
exemption to leases that are considered of low value. Lease payments on short-term leases
and leases of low-value assets are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over the
lease term.

Significant judgement in determining the lease term of contracts with renewal options

The Institute determines the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together
with any periods covered by an option to extend the lease if it is reasonably certain to be
exercised, or any periods covered by an option to terminate the lease, if it is reasonably
certain not to be exercised.

Accounting policies
Property and equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any
impairment in value, if any. Depreciation on office equipment is charged using the
straight-line method, whereby the cost of an asset less estimated residual value, if not
insignificant, Is written off over its estimated remaining useful lIfe. Depreciation on furniture
and fixtures and vehicles is charged using the reducing balance method. The assets' residual
values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each statement of
financlal position date.

On all additions, depreciation is charged from the month in which addition / capitalisation
occurs. Similarly, no depreciation is charged in the month inwhich an asset is disposed of.
Maintenance and repairs are charged to expenditure as and when incurred. Major renewals
and improvements which increase the assets' remaining useful economic lives or the
performance beyond the current estimated levels are capaitalised and the assets so replaced,
if any, are retired.

Gain or losses on disposal of assets, if any, are recognised in the period in which they are
incurred,

The carrying value of property, plant and equipment are reviewed for impairment when
events or changes in circlimstances indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable.
If such Indications exist and where the carrying values exceed the estimated recoverable
amounts, the assets are written down to the recoverable amount.
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Receivables from members

Receivables are stated at invoice value less provision for Lincollectible amounts. Provision for
doubtful debts is based on management’s assessment of member’s credit worthiness. Bad
debts are written-off when there [s ho realistic prospect of recovery.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are carried in the statement of financlal position at cost. For the
purposes of the statement of cashflows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand,
balances with banks and short term financial assets with original maturities of three months
or less.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are carried at fair value of the consideration to be paid for goods
and services. Exchange gains and losses arising in respect of llabilities In foreign currency are
added to the carrying amount of the respective liability.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Institute has a present legal or constructive obligation as
a resLlt of past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation, and a reliable estimate of the amount can be made.

Financial Instruments - Initial recognition and subsequent measurement

Initial recognition

All financial assets and liabilities are initially measured at cost which is the fair value of the
consideration given or received. These are subsequently measured at fair value, amortised
cost or cost as the case may be.

Classification of financial assets

The Institute classifies its financial assets in the following categories:

- at fair valuethrough profit or loss {""'FVTPL"");

- at fair value through other comprehensive income (""FVTOCI""); or

- at amortised cost.

The Institute determines the classification of financial assets at initial recognition. The
classification of instruments (other than equity instruments) is driven by the InstitLite's

business model for managing the financial assets and their contractual 'cash flow
characteristics',




Financial assetsthat meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at amortised
cost:

- the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial
assets n order to collect contractual cash flows; and

- the contractual terms ofthe financial asset give rise on specified datesto cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at FVTOCI:

- the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective isachieved by both
collecting contractual cash flows and selling the financial assets; and

- the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

By default, all other financial assets are subsequently measured at FVTPL

Classification of financial liabilities

The Institute classifies its financial liabilities in the following categories:

- at fairvalue through profit or loss ("FVTPL"); or

- at amortised cost.

Financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost, unless they are required to be 'measured

at FVTPL (such as instruments held for trading or derivatives) or the Institute has opted to

measurethem at FVTPL.

Subsequent measurement

i) Financial assets at FVTOCI
Elected investments In equity instruments at FVTOC| are Initially recognised at fair value
plus transaction costs. Subsequently, they are measured at fair value, with gains or
losses arising from changes in fair value recognised in other comprehensive income /
(loss).

ii)  Financial assets and liabilities at amortised cost
Financial assets and liabilities at amortised cost are initially recognised at fair value,
and subsequently carried at amortised cost, and in the case of financial assets, less any
impairment.

iii) Financial assets and liabilities at FVTPL
Financial assets and liabilities carried at FVTPL are initially recorded at fair value and
transaction costs are expensed in the income and expenditure statement. Realised and
unrealised gains and losses arising from changes in thefair value of the financial assets

and liabilities held at FVTPL are included in the income and expenditure statement in
the period in which they arise.

N  PICG
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Impairment of financial asset

The Institute recognises loss allowance for Expected Credit Loss (ECL) on financial assets
measured at amortised cost and FVTOC| at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs except for the
financial assets in which there is no significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition
orfinancial assets which are determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date, in which
case 12 months' ECL is recorded. The following were either determined to be short term in
nature or to have low or there was no increase In credit risk since Initial recognition as at the
reporting date.

- bank balances
- recejvable from members
- other recejvables

Loss allowance for receivable from members and other receivables are generally measured
using 12 months ECL, since the credit risk is considerad to be low.

The Institute considers a financial asset in default when it Is morethan 90 days past due.

Life time ECLs are the ECLsthat results from all possible default events overthe expected life
of a financial instrument. 12 month ECLs are portion of ECL that result from default events
that are possible within 12 months after the repotting date.

ECLs are a probability weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured at the
present value of all cash shortfalls (I.e. the difference between cash flows dueto the entity in
accordance with the contract and cash flows that the Company expects to receive).

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off when the Institute has no
reasonable expectation of recovering a financial asset in its entirety or a portion thereof.
Considering the nature of the financial assets, the Company has applied the standard’s
simplified approach and has calculated ECL based on life time ECL.

Derecognition
i) Financial assets

The Institute derecognises financial assets only when the contractual rights to cash
flows from the financial assets explre or when it transfers the financial assets and
substantially all the associated risks and rewards of ownership to another entity. On
derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised cost, the difference between
the asset's carrying value andthe sum of the consideration recejved and receivable is
recognised as gain / (loss). In addition, onh derecognition of an investment in a debt
nstrument classified as at FYTOCI, the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated
in the investments revallation reserve is reclassified to income and expenditlre
statement. In contrast, on derecognition of an investment in equity instrument which
the Institute has elected on initial recognition to measure at FVTOCI, the cumulative
gain or loss previously accumulated in the investments revaluation reserve is not
reclassified to income and expenditure statement, but is transferred to statement of
changes in fund balance.

92
e



N  PICG

2,3.6

2.3'7

2,3.8

2,3.9

i)  Financial liabilities
The Institute derecognises financial liabilities only when its obligations under the
financial liabilities are discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and
payable, including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised
inthe income and expenditure statement.
Off-setting of financial assets and liabilities
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the
financial statements only when there is a legally enforceable right to set-off the recognised
amount and the Institute Intends elther to settle on a net basis or to realise the assets and
settlethe liabilities simultaneously.
Foreign currency translation
Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are translated at the rates of exchange
prevailing at the statement of financial position date. Foreign currency transactions are
recorded Lsing the rates of exchange prevailing at the date of transaction. Exchange gains and
losses on translation are Included Inthe Income and expenditure statement
Revenue recognition

Revenue s recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to
the Institute and the revenue can be reliably measured. Revenue is recognised asfollows:

Revenue from services

- Entrance fee from new members is recognised as revenue when no significant
uncertainty asto its collectability exists.

® Subscription fees is recognised on an accrual basis.

- Income from advisory is recognised upon rendering of services

- Income from courses is recognised upon rendering of services.

- Income from databank is recognised on receipt basis.

- Income from conferences is recognised on recelpt basis.

- Other revenue is recognised on an accrual basis.

Returns on financial a ssets

Return on financial assets are recognised on an accrual basis Using effective rate of interest.
Income Taxes

The Institute is exempt from Income Taxes under the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 and
therefore has made no provision for incometaxes inthe financial statement.
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3 PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT
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5.1

5.2

Note 2020 2019
RIGHT OF USE ASSETS Rupees Rupees
Cost:

At 01 July 21,615,550 -

At 30 June 21,615,550 =
Accumulated depreciation:

At 0l July - -

Chargefor the year 4,323,110 -

At 30 June 4,323,110

Net carrying amounts as at 30 June 171292:440

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT AMORTISED
COST - LONG-TERM

Pakistan Investment Bonds 5.1 14,581,240 8,007,296

These carry profit yield @ 7.25% - 9.00% per annum (June 30, 2019: 7.25% per annum)
payable at six month interval and are carried at amortised cost maturing on July 12, 2021 &
September 19, 2022.

These instruments are held by the Institute's banker on behalf of the Institute.

LONG TERM SECURITY DEPOSITS

These represent security deposits paid to The Forum in accordance with the Rental
agreements for office suites 315 and 316.

2020 2019
Rupees Rupees
RECEIVABLE FROM MEMBERS - UNSECURED
Annual subscription 652,500
Director's Training Program 815,000 3,613,376
Fee from specialised workshops and others 1,162,595 100,000
2,634,095 3,713,376
Less: Expected credit loss (626,750) -
(626,750) -

2,007,345 3,713,376

9.1

9.2

10,

10.1

11,

The age analysis of receivable from members is as follows:
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2020 2019
Rupees Rupees
Not yet due (1 to 30 days) 285,600 1,088,000
Past due but not yet impaired
-31to 60 days - 2,625,376
-6110 90 days 273,000 -
-911o 120 days 273,000 -
-olderthan 120 days 1,802,495
2!634!095 3,713,376
SHORT-TERM PREPAYMENTS AND ADVANCES
Prepaid insurance 45,734 160,652
Other prepayments 241,771 1,240,905
Advance against expenses - 1,371
287,505 1,402,928
Note 2020 2019
FINANCIAL ASSETS AT AMORTISED Rupees Rupees
COST - SHORT-TERM
Pakistan Investment Bonds . 9,232,085
Market treasury bills 9.1 66,735,057 64,792,174
66!735!057 74,024,259

These carry Interest rate of 8.09% - 13.02% (June 30, 2019: 10.95% - 11.00%) per annum. These
securities have an aggregate face value of Rs.70 million (June 30, 2019: Rs.65.15 million) and
are cartied at amortised cost maturing on July 30, 2020 and December 17, 2020,

These instruments are held by the Institute's banker on behalf of the Institute.

Mote 2020 2019
TAX REFUNDS DUE FROM GOVERNMENT Rupees Rupees
Tax deducted at source 10.1 12,246,937 11,244,959

This represents refundable withholding tax deducted from payments made to the Institute.
The Institute is in the process of recovering the said balance from the authorities, Subsequent
to the year end, the Institute has recovered Rs. 8,823,892.

Note 2020 2019
CASH AND BANK BALANCES Rupees Rupees
Cashinhand 40,000 29,625
Cashat bank :
-saving account 11.1 10,659,626 1,660,320
10,699,626 1,589,945
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12,

13,

14,

15,

15.1

Represents savings account with a commercial bank carrying profit of 6.5% per annum (2019:
10.25% per annum).

Note 2020 2019

LEASE LIABILITIES Rupees Rupees
At the beginning of the year 2,15 21,615,550 -
Borrowing cost 2,240,558 -
Payments (7,835,598) -
Receipts - -
As at June 30, 2020 16!020!510 -
Non-current portion of lease liability 10,200,712 -
Current portion of lease liability 5,819,798 -

16,020,510

FEES IN ADVANCE

Annual Subscription Fee 645,000 125,000
Board evaluation fee 7,093,960 4,313,560
Advance fee for Directors' Training Program 1,895,769 1,361,769
Others 82,668 50,004

9,721,397 5,850,333

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

There were no conti ngencies and commitments outstanding as at June 30, 2020 and June 30,
2019.

Note 2020 2019
REVENUE FROM SERVICES Rupees Rupees
Entrance fee from members 780,000 455,000
Annual subscription and application fee 8,952,496 8,567,000
Feefrom Director's Training Program 29,854,832 59,931,950
Fee from specialized workshops 1,456,947 3.318,960
Advisory services for board evaluation 15.1 3,599,480 3,349,640
Sale of publication 244,000 14,850
Conference fee 1,716,630 -
Other Income - 74,000

Databank forindependent directors -
52,604,385

11,407,500
87,118,900

This mainly includes fee against Board evaluations performed for various corporate entities.
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2020 2019
PROFESSIONAL SERVICE FEE Rupees Rupees
Director's Training Program 8,920,000 12,445,000
Specialised workshops 2,680,000 840,000
Others 218,000 215,149

11,818,000 13,500,149

OTHER EXPENDITURE
Marketing and advertisement 116,700 546,047
Publication expenses 388,948 385,385
Resource development - 25,000
Boarding and Lodging 818,846 2,614,014
Canteen supplies 759,229 581,839
Membership fees 224,262 398,096
Others 359,405 257,932
2,667,390 4,808,313
OTHER INCOME
Return /interest on:
- Profit / loss saving account 2,668,991 833,041
- Market Treasury bills 6,483,536 5,075,644
- Pakistan Investment Bonds 1,927,482 1,101,621
- Loss on disposal of fixed assets (26,539) -
11,043,470 7,010,306

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and bank balances 10,699,626 1,589,945
Short term Investments 66,735,057 64,792,174
77,434,683 66,382,119
TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES
Relationship Nature of transaction 2020 2019
Rupees Rupees

Key management Salaries and
employees other employee

compensation benefits 20,031,360

13,697,357 y

Key management personnel includes Chief Executive Officer and Manager Accounts.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RELATED DISCLOSURES
Financial assets and liabilities

21.
21.1

I‘O
~O

Total

Non-interest | mark-up bearing

Interest [ mark-up bearing

Total

Total

Maturity after Maturity Maturity after
up to one year

Maturity
upio one year

one year

oneyear

Rupees

Financial Assets

Financial assets at

amortised cost’

81,316,297

14,581,240 81,316,297

66,735,057

1,540,470
2,007,345
3,105,776

10,659,626

98,629,514

1,540,470
2,007,345
3,105,776

1,540,470

Long-term security deposits
Receivable from members

Other recejvables

2,007,345

3,105,776

6,653,591

5,113,121

10,659,626

10,659,626
77,394,683

Cash and bank balances

91,975,923

1,540,470

14,581,240

2020

06.638.290

13.046 415

1.540.470

11,505.945

83.591.875

B.OUT296

g

75.584.57

7

2019

Financial Liabilities

311}

I

16,020,

10,200,712

3,819,798

I

Lease liability
Accrued expenses

806,956
1.568.580

805,956

1.568.,590

806,956
1,568.590

Other payables

16,020,510

10.200,712

819,798

5

2020

132,504

oy

3,132 904

32,904

31

2019

2L.2

22,
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Fair values of financial assets and liabilities

Falrvalue is the price that would be received to sell an asset or pald to transfer a liability Inan
orderly transaction in the principal (or most advantageous) market at the measurement date
under current market conditions (l.e. an exit price) regardless of whether that price is directly
observable or estimated Lsing another valuation technique.

As per the requirements of the IFRS 13, the Institute shall classify fair value measurements
using a fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance of the inputs used in making the
measurements. The fair value hierarchy hasthe following levels:

- Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (level 1);

- Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly ([.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices) (level 2);
and

- Inputs for assets or liability that are not based on observable market data (i.e.
unobservable inputs) (level 3).

Currently, the Institute does not hold any assets which are either being carried or disclosed at
fair value

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

During the year ended June 30, 2020, the global economic environment including Pakistan
has been severly affected by the COVID-19 outbreak, COVID-19 has impacted the businesses in
Pakistan through increase in overall credit risk, overall slowdown in the economic activity,
challenges to continLity of business operations and managing cybersecurity threat.

The Institute’s management and Board is fully cognizant of the business challenges pased by
the COVID-19 outbreak and constantly monltoring the situation and belleve that its current
policies for managing credit, liquidity, market and operational risk are adequate in response
to the current situation.

Market Risk

(i) Currency Risk
Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financlal instrument
will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. As at June 30, 2020 the

Institute does not have any financial instrument that isdenominated inforeign currency
and assuch has no exposureto currency risk.
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(ii) Interest rate risk

The interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or the future cash flows of a financial
instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest. The Institute does not
have any short and long term borrowings from banks and Is exposed to Interest rate risk
on its short term investments and bank balances. At the balance sheet date, the interest
rate risk profile of the Institute's interest bearing financial instruments is:

2020 2019
Rupees Rupees
Profit bearing financial instruments
Bank balance - profit / loss savings account 10,659,626 1,560,320
10,659,626 1,560,320

Had the interest rate been higher [ lower by 100 basis points with all the other variables
held constant, interest income on profit / loss savings account for the year would have
been higher / lower by Rs. 106,596 (2019: Rs. Nil).

(iii)) Other Price risk

Price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market prices (other than those arising from interest
rate risk or currency risk), whether those changes are caused by factors specific to the
individual financial instrument or its issuer, or factors affecting all similar financial
instruments traded in the market. Currently the Institute does not face any risk as none
of thefinancial assets or liabilities face the risk of change in market price.

Credit risk

Credit risk represents the risk of financial loss being caused if the counter parties fail to
discharge an obligation. The Institute's credit risk is primarily attributable to its receivable
from members. The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the counter parties are banks
with reasonably high credit ratings. The maximum exposure to credit risk is equal to the
carrying amount of the financial assets excluding cash in hand balance of Rs. 40,000.

The Institute monitors the credit quality of its financial assets with reference to historical
performance of such assets and available external credit ratings. The carrying values of
financlal assets which are neither past due nor impaired are as follows:

2020 2019
Rupees Rupees
Financial assetsat amortised cost 81,316,297 82,031,555
Long-term security deposits 1,540,470 1,540,470
Recejvable from members 2,007,345 3,713,376
Othef receivables 3,105,776 7,762,944
Cash and bank balances 10,659,626 1,560,320
98,629,514 96,608,665
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The credit quality of advances can be assessed with reference to thelir histerical performance
with no major defaults in recent history. The credit quality of the Institute's bank balances can
be assessed with reference to external credit rating as follows:

Rating
Bank Rating agency Shortterm Long term
Faysal Bank Limited PACRA Al+ AR
Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk reflects the |nstitute's inability in raising funds to meet obligations associated
with financial liabilities.

The Institute manages liquidity risk by maintaining sufficient cash and cash equivalents.

Capital Risk Management

The Institute's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Institute's ability to
continue as a going concern and to generate funds to meet the primary objective of the
Institute. The capital structure of the Institute consists of a general fund balance raised
through operating surplus and income on investments.

NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES 2020 2019
Number of employeesat June 30
- Permanent 12 11

Contractual - -
12

|—=
[

Average number of employees during the year

- Permanent 13 11
Contractual -
13 11
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REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE AND EXECUTIVES

The aggregate amolints charged in these financial statements for remuneration to the Chief
Executive and Executives of the Institute is as follows:

Chief Executive Executives
2020 2019 2020 2019
Managerlal remuneration 10,712,957 13,839,360 13,017,867 11,476,800
Bonus - 3,000,000 - 1,912,800

10,712,957 16,339,360 13,017,867 13,389,600

Number of persons 2 1 6 5

DATE OF AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE

Thesefinancial statements were authorised for issue by the Board of Directors of the Institute
in their meeting held on September 18, 2020.
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Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive Directpr
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FORM OF PROXY

| a member of the Pakistan Institute of Corporate

Governance, do hereby appoint Ms./Mr.
Dfo S/o or In her/his abseance,
Ms./Mr. D/o Sfo both as

members of the Institute to act as my proxy at the 16" Annual General Meeting of the
Institute to be held on the 27™ day of October 2020 and at every adjournment thereof.

Dated this day of 2020.

Signed:

Pakistan Institute of Corporate Governance
Suite # 316, The Forum, Khayaban-e-Jami, Block-9, Clifton, Karachi— 75600,
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© suite # 316, The Forum, Khayaban-e-Jami, (&) Phone: +92 (21) 35306673-74

Block-9, Clifton, Karachi - 75600. &b Website: www.picg.org.pk

Designed by Bond Adverfising
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